
Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018 1



2 Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018



Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018 3

HEAD OFFICE

38 Heystek Street, Rustenburg,
North West, 0300, South Africa

Private Bag X82327, Rustenburg, 0300

EMAIL: info@magalieswater.co.za
TELEPHONE: +27 14 597 4636

FAX: +27 14 597 4638

www.magalieswater.co.za



4 Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018



Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018 5

LIST OF ACRONYMS

SANS South African National Standards

ICT Information Communications and Technology

BCM Business Continuity Management

DWS Department of Water and Sanitation

PBWSS Pilanesburg Bulk Water Supply Scheme

ML/day Megalitre per day

IRS Implementation Readiness Studies

EWSETA Energy and Water Sector Training Authority

NQF  National Qualifications Framework

EWP Employee Wellness Programme

DIFR Disabling Injury Frequency Rate

ISO International Organisation for Standardisation

OHSAS Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series

CSI Corporate Social Investments

VIP Ventilated Improved Pit
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01 FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER 
OF WATER AND SANITATION 

South Africa is a democratic country where the Bill of Rights 

enshrines the access to water and sanitation for all the 

people, on an increasing rate and at the lowest possible 

cost, as a fundamental Constitutional right towards the 

realisation of the socio-economic values of human dignity, 

equality and freedom.

Being an indispensable resource for our social existence 

and our water-food-energy nexus, water scarcity in our 

country coupled with our growing population and its rapid 

urbanisation makes it imperative that it must be preserved, 

conserved and used innovatively because it is a disrupter 

of the fourth industrial revolution that tends to outpace 

the speed of its delivery and development of its related 

infrastructure.

The National Development Plan clearly articulates 

institutional reforms in the water sector for the Department 

of Water and Sanitation and entities at the regional and 

local levels as effective and efficient vehicles to  improve 

Mr G E Nkwinti, MP 
Minister of Water and Sanitation
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synergies towards ensuring accessibility  to a range of 

water and sanitation related services across the entire 

water value chain.

In this regard, Magalies Water has been one of those pillars 

of strength for the Department of Water and Sanitation 

for continuing to play a significant role in contributing to 

ensure reliable water and sanitation services to customers 

including the mining sector, agriculture, manufacturing, 

commercial and industrial sectors, and local municipalities 

like Bela-Bela, City of Tshwane, Modimolle-Mookgopong, 

Moses Kotane, Rustenburg and Thabazimbi.

In this Annual Report for the financial year under review, 

Magalies Water has implemented its capital expansions in 

accordance to the capital expansion Water and Sanitation 

Masterplan which has, among others, seen it provide wall-

to wall solutions of the delivery of water and sanitation 

services to key systematic barriers such as inequality, 

unsustainable consumption patterns, weak institutional 

capacity, and environmental degradation.

I would like to convey my sincere gratitude to the Board, 

Executive Management, the Chief Executive Officer and 

the entire staff members of Magalies Water for their role 

in the process of revolutionising the water and sanitation 

sector.

Mr G E Nkwinti, MP

Minister of Water and Sanitation

Being an indispensable 

resource for our social 

existence and our water-food-

energy nexus, water scarcity 

in our country coupled with 

our growing population and 

its rapid urbanisation makes 

it imperative that it must be 

preserved
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Dear Stakeholders,

The Financial Year ended 30 June 2018 has been a very 

good one for Magalies Water. All thanks to the Minister 

of Water and Sanitation, fellow members of the Board, 

Magalies Water employees and all Stakeholders.

Our focus towards excellence and growth is beginning to 

pay dividends. But the historical challenges of poverty, 

unemployment and inequality remain with us. This is 

clearly reflected in the inability of some customers to pay 

their accounts. The economic hardships are further making 

it difficult to raise capital to fund projects geared towards 

meeting the demand for the basic service we provide..

We have entered a new phase as an organisation, wherein 

we need to push hard the frontiers of poverty and ensure 

a sustainable provision of water services in all of our areas 

of operation. This noble goal needs to be achieved with 

no reliance to the national fiscus. This will require Magalies 

Water to approach the finance market and borrow to 

finance some of our key projects, including Pilanesberg 

Phases II and III.

STATEMENT  
OF THE CHAIRPERSON

Adv MM Petlane 
Chairperson of the Board

02 STATEMENT OF THE 
CHAIRPERSON 
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As stated earlier, there has been good fortunes during this 

reporting period for Magalies Water. We have achieved 

93% of our targets, declared surplus of over R114 million 

and had no reported wasteful or fruitless expenditure. 

Once more, Magalies Water has obtained an Unqualified 

Audit Opinion as expressed by the Auditor General SA. 

This is the sixth consecutive year that Magalies Water has 

achieved an Unqualified Audit performance. 

Magalies Water will continue to pursue continuous 

improvements to position the organisation as a service 

provider of choice to our stakeholders and customers 

by pursuing excellence in good governance and service 

delivery.

On behalf of the Board of Magalies Water, we wish 

to express our special appreciation to the Water and 

Sanitation Minister, the Honourable Mr G.E Nkwinti (MP), 

for his continued support and guidance. A special thank 

you to the Department of Water and Sanitation for treating 

the organisation as part and parcel of the family. Employees 

of Magalies Water have been a critical input and resource 

in the achievement of our goals. The organisation will 

continue to place reliance on them in pursuit of excellence 

in good governance and service delivery. 

I would like to convey a special thank you to:

•	 The Auditor General SA, and the Parliamentary 

Portfolio Committee on Water and Sanitation for 

keeping us forever accountable;

•	 The Mayors, the Councillors, the Officials of the 

Water Services Authorities and the Tribal and Royal 

Authorities in the operating areas of Magalies Water 

for their strategic partnerships in delivering our 

services to the citizens; and

•	 The Industries and Private Sector Partners for their 

collaborations in ensuring that the delivery of services 

happens.

We are not perfect, but by far, we are better governed and 

managed with the sole purpose of increasing value and 

growth for customers in our areas of supply.

Adv MM Petlane
Chairperson of the Board

We have achieved 93% of our 

targets, declared surplus of 

over R114 million received an 

Unqualified Audit opinion, and 

had no reported wasteful or 

fruitless expenditure
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Dear Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Magalies Water Executive cohort, I am 

pleased to present to you the Annual Integrated Report 

of Magalies Water for the 2017/18 highlighting the 

organisation’s performance for the financial year. This 

strategic and performance report is always contextualised 

through our interpretation of the mandate we derived 

from Section 29 and Section 30 of the Water Services Act, 

1997 (Act 108 of 1997).   

Organisational Performance
 

Magalies Water organisational performance is grounded 

and unpacked in this Report based on the strategic 

context that is premised on the four balanced scorecard 

perspectives.                                   

•	 Organisational Effectiveness and Efficiency;

•	 Finance and Governance;

•	 Customer and Stakeholder Interaction; and

•	 Organisational Capacity.

From the Organisational Capacity perspective in particular; 

our enabler of our excellence, we placed a huge emphasis 

03 STATEMENT OF THE  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Mr Sandile Psychology Mkhize 
Chief Executive Officer
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on the recruitment of competent personnel as well as 

ensuring that our work environment is conducive for every 

individual to perform to the best of their abilities. The 

resultant impact of the investment made in our staffing is 

evident from the outstanding performance that we have 

achieved.  

As it has been in the past, we continued to consider all 

the relevant matters that influence the performance of 

Magalies Water during the planning and contracting with 

the Shareholder, i.e., setting of the Five (5)-Year Corporate 

Plan 2017/18-2021/22 and Shareholder Compact 2017/18 

processes. Our achievement of 93% overall organisational 

performance, which compares favourably to 88% reported 

in 2016/17 financial year, bears testimony to things having 

been done right the first time and the whole time. 

Although we are presenting an improved performance, 

the targets of two (2) key performance indicators, namely, 

the Average Debtors Days and Disabling Injury Frequency 

Rate (DIFR) were not achieved. Debtor Days have been 

our main challenges even in the preceding four financial 

years, to this reporting period ending 30 June 2018. 

Notwithstanding this, we remain resolute and confident 

that the Debt Collection Strategy and the measures that 

have been put in place will start yielding positive results 

soon. 

In the financial year 2017/2018, R586 million was generated 

from operating activities. Efficiencies in operations and 

cost containment initiatives resulted in an unprecedented 

surplus of more than R114 million; the performance trend 

which is expected to continue in the medium to long term. 

Magalies Water boasts a strong balance sheet with total 

assets base worth R3.36 billion as opposed to R2.15 billion 

in 2016/17, which is a strong indication of a rapid growing 

organisation. Magalies Water has continued to produce 

drinking water of excellent quality which is consistently 

compliant to the SANS 241: 2015 Water Quality Standards.  

It is encouraging to have attained such overall performance 

level (93% and over R114m) despite the continued 

deterioration of the raw water quality from both the 

Crocodile and the Pienaars River Catchments. The quality 

of input water had forced Magalies Water to utilise the 

above industry average process measures such as pre-

oxidation and dissolved air floatation for water purification.

Reliability of water supply remained steadfast with having 

recorded, during the year 2017/18, one (1) against the 

upper limit of nine (9) incident of (continuous) water supply 

interruption exceeding 48 hours. 

In the financial year 2017/2018,  

R 586 million was generated from 

water sales.
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•	 The Board for their collective leadership and guidance of 

our organisation; 

•	 My Executive Management (EXCO) colleagues and the 

entire staff of Magalies Water whose efforts continued to 

sustain positive performance of our organisation; 

•	 The Water Services Authorities, all the relevant Stakeholders 

and communities within which Magalies Water has 

operational presence for their continued support of our 

efforts to deliver on our mandate; 

•	 The Director General and the colleagues at the Department 

of Water and Sanitation; 

•	 The Office of the Auditor General; and lastly 

•	 The Office of the National Treasury, to mention some of the 

key enabling pillars of our success level.

In conclusion, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all 

who contributed towards the exceptional performance of our 

organisation, which was the best ever over the past five years. 

SP Mkhize
Chief Executive Officer

Challenges  
 

Insufficient funding to implement capital expansions remains a 

key challenge and a risk to our strategic execution process. This 

became more apparent at the conclusion of our Five-year Growth 

Strategic Plan. We will continue to engage our Shareholder, 

National Treasury and to explore financially viable and sustainable 

measures to fund the complete rollout of our Bulk Infrastructure 

Master Plan. We remain committed to ensuring that household 

within our area of supply benefits from the growth of our 

organisation. 

Audit Matters
 

I am delighted to pronounce that the Office of the Auditor-General 

has again expressed a financially unqualified audit opinion on the 

financial statements of Magalies Water. This is a result of sustained 

effort to improve financial management and governance within 

the entity. Although specific findings on performance information 

and other matters were raised, an appropriate action plan was 

drafted to immediately address these matters.

Appreciation

I would like to express my sincere thanks to:

•	 The Honourable Minister of Water and Sanitation, the 

Honourable Deputy Minister and the Chairperson of the 

Parliamentary Portfolio Committee on Water and Sanitation 

for their enriching engagements; 

overall (93%) 

performance
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In my capacity as the Accounting Officer in terms of the Public 

Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) as amended, and as the 

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of Magalies Water, it is my honour 

to accept the responsibility for the maintenance and preparation 

of financial statements and non-financial performance information 

of Magalies Water for the 2017/18 financial year. The Annual 

Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with, 

among others, the International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives 

issued by the Accounting Standards Board and the requirements 

of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).

I also take full responsibility for the preparation, assessments or 

evaluations and the outcomes contained in this Annual Report 

(2017/18) financial year ending 30 June 2018. The level of 

performance (93%) reported on the predetermined objectives is 

accurate and I have confidence that the content is credible, of 

integrity and reliable due to the currently embedded internal 

controls that remain relevant and adequate. 

04 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 
AND CONFIRMATION OF THE 
ANNUAL REPORT INFORMATION 
ACCURACY

These are designed to provide reasonable assurance on our 

performance throughout the year. For instance, at self-assessment 

level, the Magalies Water internal controls are implemented 

and monitored; our employees understand the importance of 

maintaining the highest ethical standards in the manner we 

conduct our business. 

The Internal Audit function and the Risk Management processes 

provide the necessary oversight that takes into account all levels 

of defence in the verification of the effectiveness of the existing 

control measures and the identification of additional ones, where 

applicable. The two (2) functions also continued to provide 

reasonable assurance against material misstatements or deficits 

and to check whether risk and opportunities were dealt with, 

whenever it was deemed necessary.



16 Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018

This is our account of the acceptability of the true state of affairs of our entity’s results from both operations and financial reporting 

for the year ended 30 June 2018. It is premised on two critical factors:’

 

1.  Our reported information has been externally audited and the Auditor General South Africa (AGSA) has expressed an 

independent opinion on both the annual financial and all other predetermined non-financial objectives that had been 

contracted to the Shareholder for the reporting period. We provided unrestricted access to the AGSA for review of all the 

relevant records as legally required. Refer to the AG Report on pages 140 to 147.

2.  The Board and Executive Authority have been privy to the Annual Report for 2017/18 in line with the legislative requirements 

This Annual Report has been prepared on a the going concern basis and the Executive Authority approved it by the end of 

November 2018.

Mr SP Mkhize
Chief Executive Officer
Date:

Adv. MM. Petlane
Chairperson of the Board
Date:
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The Company Secretariat, Magalies
Water EXCO and the Board Functions

The Board of Magalies Water is established in terms of Section 28 

of the Water Services Act, (Act No. 108 of 1997) and is classified 

as Government Business Enterprise as per Schedule 3B of the 

Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999) as amended.

Magalies Water is governed by amongst others, the following

pieces of Legislation:

• Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Act No. 108 of 

1996);

• The Companies Act (Act No. 71 of 2008);

• The Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (Act No. 1 of 

1999);

• The Water Services Act (Act No. 108 of 1997); and

• Any other applicable Public Sector Protocols

05 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Magalies Water also uses the guideline of the King IV Report

on Corporate Governance to exercise ethical and effective

leadership by the governing body towards the achievement of 

the following governance outcomes:

• Ethical culture;

• Good performance;

• Effective control; and

• Legitimacy

These legal instruments have been utilised to ensure that the roles 

and responsibilities of the Executive Authority, the Accounting 

Authority, and Management are clearly defined to prevent 

any possible conflicts. In this regard, the Water and Sanitation 

Minister, Mr Gugile Ernest Nkwinti, MP, continues to devolve 

some of his vested powers to members of the Board.
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2017/2018 Corporate Governance 
Key Focus 

During the 2017/18 financial year, the key focus areas included 

finalising the Strategy Growth Plans to ensure sustainability 

and enhancing the going concern of Magalies Water. The 

Organisational strategy implementation programmes took into 

account the principles of King IV on Corporate Governance, with 

effect from 1 April 2017.

Company Secretary 

The Company Secretary of Magalies Water is part of the 

organisation that oversees the efficient administration and 

compliance activities of the organisation. The Company Secretary, 

along with the Board members are responsible for tasks as 

specified in the Companies Act (Act 71 of 2008 as amended). 

The function oversees the coordination of the activities of the 

Board and its Committees in line with the Institute of Directors 

that states that: 

“the Company Secretary has a key role to 

play in ensuring that Board Procedures are 

both followed and regularly reviewed. The 

Chairman and the Board will look to the 

Company Secretary for guidance on what 

their responsibilities are, under the Rules 

and Regulations to which they are subject 

and on how these responsibilities should be 

discharged. All Directors should have access 

to the advice and services of the Company 

Secretary and should recognise that the 

Chairman is entitled to strong support from 

the Company Secretariat in ensuring the 

effective functioning of the Board”. 

Taking cognisance of the abovementioned duties, the Magalies 

Water Company Secretariat, accordingly, discharged its 

responsibilities on the overall governance of the organisation. 

The latter included ensuring that the members of the Executive 

Committee (EXCO) and that of the Board, carried forth their roles 

and responsibilities as outlined in the Board Charter and both duly 

exercised their oversight powers.

The Board and Changes in Composition 

Members of the Magalies Water Board were appointed by the 

Honourable Minister of Water and Sanitation in terms of Schedule 

1 of the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) for a term not 

exceeding four years. 
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Ms TF Zondi
Chairperson: Audit Committee 

Deputy Chairperson: Risk Committee
Ms TF Zondi has vast experience in Supply Chain 

Management in both the Private and Public Sector 
Institutions. She has a wealth of knowledge in 

Corporate Governance. 
Joined the Board on: 1 July 2009

Ms F Saloojee 
Chairperson: Risk Committee 

Member: Capital Investment Committee 
Member: Human Resources & Remuneration Committee. 

Ms Saloojee brought a wealth of experience in Local 
Government. She had been the Councillor of Rustenburg 
Local Municipality. She also served in various leadership 
roles within the Private Sector and was on the Board of 

Rand Water prior to joining the Board of Magalies Water. 
Joined the Board on: 1 May 2014 

Ms TD Monewe 
Chairperson: Stakeholder Engagement 

Committee
Deputy Chairperson: Human Resources & 

Remuneration Committee 
Member: Finance Committee

Ms Monewe is an educator by profession and served 
as a Member of the Mayoral Committee responsible 

for Water and Sanitation in the Bojanala District 
Municipality prior to joining the Magalies Water Board.

Joined the Board on: 01 December 2011

Mr FP Vilakazi 
Chairperson: Capital Investment Committee 

Deputy Chairman: Finance
Mr Vilakazi has extensive experience in the Public 
Sector. He previously served as a Member of the 

Executive Committee in the North West Province. He 
was a special advisor to the Minister of Water and 

Environmental Affairs. 
Joined the Board on:  1 May 2014

BOARD MEMBERS

Advocate MM Petlane
Chairperson: Board

Advocate Petlane, whose strength is founded in 
his legal background, served in various leadership 
positions across the Public, Academic and Private 

Sectors, including being on the Board of Rand Water 
before taking up the Chairpersonship of the Board of 

Magalies Water. .

Joined the Board on: 1 May 2014
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Kgosi SV Suping 
Member: Human Resources & 

Remuneration Committee
Member: Risk Committee

Kgosi Suping is a Chief of the Bahurutshe Tribe in 
the village of Supingstad who brought incredible 

experience from being a Board Member of 
Botshelo Water and from having served in the 
National House of Traditional Leaders prior to 

joining the Magalies Water Board.
Joined the Board on: 1 June 2014

Ms S Lebeko-Ratlhagane 
Member: Risk Committee 

Member: Capital Investment Committee
Ms Lebeko-Ratlhagane is professionally registered 
Pharmacist who has vast experience in the Local 

Government and the Water Sector.  
She was a Mayor of the Ramotshere Moiloa Local 

Municipality and also a Board Chairperson of 
Botshelo Water prior to joining Magalies Water 

Board.
Joined the Board on: 1 June 2014

Mr TT Mohapi 
Member: Capital Investment Committee 

Member: Risk Committee
Member: Finance Committee

Mr Mohapi is an entrepreneur who also served in 
the Small Business Chamber and on the Tender 

Board of the Limpopo Province. He is an Educator 
by profession and has vast experience in Local 

Government. He also served as the Mayor of the 
Modimolle Local Municipality prior to joining 

Magalies Water Board.
Joined the Board on: 01 December 2011

Ms PN Nkwinika 
Deputy Chairperson: Board 

Chairperson: Human Resources and 
Remuneration Committee 

Ms Nkwinika’s legal background and her vast experience 
in the Public Sector have enabled her to serve in various 
positions within the Justice Department, including being 
a legal advisor and a Head of Department prior to taking 

up her position in the Magalies Water Board. 
Joined the Board on: 1 July 2009

Ms N Mufamadi 
Deputy Chairperson: Audit Committee 

Member: Risk Committee
Ms Mufamadi has experience in accounting, Auditing 

including Forensic Auditing. She also holds other 
leadership positions within the Private and the Public 

Sector Institutions.
Joined the Board on: 1 May 2014

Mr DR Sibanda 
Chairperson: Finance Committee 

Member: Human Resources Committee
Mr Sibanda is experienced in the fields of 
Managerial and Financial Accounting with 

exposure in Breweries, Manufacturing, Medical 
Schemes and the Public Sector. 

Joined the Board on: 1 July 2009
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Board Members Composition by Race and Gender

Race Gender Total % Male % Female %

African

Male 5 45%

45% 55%

Female 5 45%

Indian

Male -

Female 1 9%

Coloured

Male -

Female -

White

Male -

Female -

Total   11 100% 

Total Percentage 45% 55%

At the end of the 2017/18 financial year, the Magalies Water Board had eleven (11) members; a decrease from the original 13 members in 

2014 and from 12 members as at the end of 2016/17. Ms MA Hlahla resigned  with effect from 31 March 2018. Her resignation adversely 

impacted the female-to-male ratio, particularly the African females, as the latter reduced from six to five Board members.

Key Functional Activities of the Board

The Board leads the organisation and it is collectively responsible for its long-term success. It provides leadership with respect to setting 

strategic objectives, vision and values within the framework of prudent controls over risks and opportunities. The latter two determinants 

of success or failure are inherent in the Magalies Water corporate compliance and planning cycle. The Board also maintained visibility in 

the organisaiton, such as when members visited various Water Treatment Plants during the 2017/18 financial year. 

A breakdown of some of the roles and responsibilities mandated to the Board of Magalies Water is extracted from its adopted Charter 

as follows:-

•	 To set the strategic direction of the company; 

•	 To craft and adopt the growth and sustainability strategy of the organisation;

•	 To ensure that the defined objectives of the shareholder are achieved;

•	 To consider and guide strategic risk management commitments, processes and the implementation of effective risk  management 

systems;
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•	 To approve annual tariffs and budget allocation  in line with 

strategic objectives, as it was the case for the reporting 

period ended 30 June 2018; 

•	 To ensure that the organisation is run in a financially viable 

manner including condoning irregular expenditure, provided 

that the transactions are not financially significant;

•	 To ensure that management is vigilant on local municipalities’ 

liquidity and financial sustainability while addressing the 

affordability of the non-paying debtors;

•	 To be responsive and guide mitigation of reputational 

impacts and approval processes for escalation of customers 

in arrears to the respective Ministers, and/or engaging 

National Treasury on the municipalities’ equitable share 

apportionment;

•	 To approve Committees Reports and activities, including the:

- Declaration of  interest and confidentiality undertaking  

 procedures, all  Committees  Terms of References in  

 line with the Board Charter, 

- Setting and /or approval of policies of the   

 organisation, and

- The audited annual financial statements and the annual 

 performance reports for each financial year;

•	 To approve the quarterly performance information reports 

and subsequently for each year; 

•	 To approve percentage of income to be allocated to the 

annual salary increases and performance incentive bonuses 

for each year including the 2017/2018 financial year; and

•	 To set key performance indicators relating to the borrowing 

limits, guarantees and grant funding. This was carried out 

during the development of the business/corporate plan for 

2018/19 to 2022/23 and the Shareholder Compact (2018/19)

It is also the Board’s duty

•	 To set and/or revise the delegation of authority; 

•	 To dispatch its power of attorney including ensuring 

that Magalies Water has in place the registered tax 

representatives, approved executive organisational structure, 

and external auditors. The Auditor General of South Africa 

(AGSA) continues to add value to the organisation’s business 

planning and monitoring; and

•	 To ensure that the organisation is and seen to be a 

responsible citizen

At pre-set intervals the Board, with the assistance of the Company 

Secretary, performs self-assessment. 

Board Evaluation 

The Company Secretary concluded the evaluation of the 

performance and effectiveness of the Board, individual Board 

members, and Board Committees during this period, which 

was conducted by the  Institute of Directors in Southern Africa 

(IODSA) was received. 

Board Charter 

The primary purpose of the Magalies Water Board’s Charter is to 

set out the roles and responsibilities of the Board, composition, 

meeting procedures, delegation and the authority of the Board 

members. 
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Shareholder Compact

The Board concluded the Shareholder Compact with the Executive 

Authority, Minister of Water and Sanitation, for the 2017/18 

financial year; which set the performance objectives, measures, 

indicators, and annual targets. The Key Performance Indicators 

were set in accordance with the requirements of the PFMA. Each 

one of the Board Committees dealt with the oversight on the 

implementation of the Shareholder Compact according to the 

designated responsibilities. 

 

Board Meetings
 

Meetings of the Board and its Committees were scheduled in 

advance, for the reporting period, save for the Special Meetings 

that had to be convened as and when required. The Board held 

four (4) Ordinary  Meetings and five (5) Special Meetings, which 

were duly authorised by the Shareholder during the year 

Attendance of Board Meetings per Member is as follows:

Member Attendance

Adv. MM Petlane 9/9

PN Nkwinika 8/9

DR Sibanda 7/9

MA Hlahla* 6/7

TT Mohapi 9/9

TF Zondi 8/9

NM Mufamadi 5/9

TD Monewe 9/9

FP Vilakazi 9/9

F Saloojee 9/9

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane 8/9

Kgosi SV Suping 9/9

*Resigned effective from 31 March 2018

Board Committees 

The  Committees of the Board are instrumental in ensuring that 

the Board operates in an effective and efficient manner. The 

following are the Committees of the Board:

• Audit Committee;

• Capital Investment Committee;

• Finance Committee;

• Human Resources and Remuneration Committee;

• Risk Committee; and

• Stakeholder Engagement Committee.

All the above Board Committees operate according to the 

approved Committee Charter (Audit Committee) or Terms of 

Reference (ToR).

Audit Committee

All six (6) Scheduled Meetings of the Audit Committee were 

successfully held during the period under review. The Committee 

performed its statutory function as set out in the Companies Act 

of 2008 and its roles and responsibilities as set out in the PFMA 

and Treasury Regulation 27.1. The Committee is accountable to 

the Board and continues to play a critical independent oversight 

role on corporate governance, integrated financial reporting, 

evaluation of the effectiveness of internal controls, combined 

assurance, as well as internal and external audit functions. 

During the 2017/18, the Committee reported on its evaluation 

of effectiveness of all measures put in place that culminated to 

this Annual Report. Some of the key activities and roles of the 

committee include the following:
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• To oversee the Entity compliance with the legal and statutory 

provisions; 

• To approve the risk areas of the entity to be covered in the 

scope of internal audit as per the risk assessment reports 

noted quarterly and annually;

• To review the audited annual financial statements and assess 

the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information 

provided to end users;

• To review and recommend to the Board for approval, the 

management accounts, performance information report, 

debt management and contingent liability reports identified 

as a result of internal and external audit and on a quarterly 

basis;

• To approve the annual internal Audit Operation Plan and the 

internal Audit Charter;

• To review quarterly Internal Audit Progress Report;

• To review the Internal and External Audit Findings Tracking 

Register on a quarterly basis; and

• To conduct annual self-assessment, to mention a few. 

• The attendance of the audit committee by delegation as well 

as by invitation are set out in the tables below, respectively.

The attendance of the Audit Committee by delegation as well as 

by invitation are set out in the Tables below, respectively.

Scheduled Meetings

Member Attendance

TF Zondi (Chairperson)  6/6

N Mufamadi  4/6

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane 6/6

SM Mamotheti  6/6

S Madikizela 6/6

K Moodley  6/6

Attendance by Invitation

Member Attendance

Adv. MM Petlane  2/2

PN Nkwinika  6/6

DR Sibanda  1/1

MA Hlahla  1/1 

TT Mohapi  1/1

TD Monewe  1/1

FP Vilakazi  1/1

F Saloojee  1/1

Kgosi SV Suping 1/1

Capital Investments Committee
 

The key roles and responsibilities of the committee are the 

following:

• To recommend the approval of Magalies Water’s capital 

expansion programme and projects prioritisation plans to 

the Board;

•	 To recommend to the Board, the approval of additional, 

including deviations from  re-prioritisation of projects 

away from the originally-approved infrastructure expansion 

programme;

•	 To bring to the Board any water infrastructure-related matter 

that warrants its attention;

•	 To ensure that the primary activity of Magalies Water is 

achieved in terms of Section 29 and 30 of the Water Services 

Act, 1997 (Act 108 of 1997), among others.
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The attendance of the Capital Investments Committee is set out 

as follows: 

Capital Investments Committee Attendance by Delegation: 
Frequency per Member

Member Attendance

FP Vilakazi (Chairperson)  5/5

MA Hlahla *  3/4

TT Mohapi  5/5

F Saloojee  3/5

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane  5/5

*Resigned effective from 31 March 2018

Capital Investments Committee Attendance by Invitation

Member Attendance

PN Nkwinika  5/5

Finance Committee
 

The Finance Committee oversees financial reporting, effective 

and efficient financial management, reviews the investment 

portfolio governance. It held all its four scheduled meetings 

during the period under review. Its composition changed upon 

the resignation of Ms MA Hlahla at the end of March 2018.. 

The key roles and responsibilities of the Finance Committee 

included the following:

•	 To recommend the approval of financial information to the 

Board;

•	 To recommend approval of the annual budget and its 

adjustments to the Board;

•	 To assess the financial reports as per the Corporate and 

Annual Performance Plans;

•	 To ensure that the Board approves the significance and 

materiality framework and that it is in place; 

•	 To oversee the recommendation of irregular, fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure reports to the Board for approval; 

•	 To monitor the quarterly approval of the management 

accounts by the Board; 

•	 To recommend the audited annual financial statements to 

the Board for approval; 

•	 To review the delegation of authority and recommend to the 

Board for approval; 

•	 To review and recommend the Finance Committee’s Terms of 

Reference in line with the Board Charter for Board approval;  

•	 To conduct annual self-assessment in line with the approved 

Finance Strategy Implementation Plan; 

•	 To incorporate the King IV Principles on corporate 

governance into drafted policies for the Board’s approval; 

•	 To oversee Magalies Water’s supply chain management 

compliance to Treasury Regulations and other relevant 

policies;

•	 To review and report progress to the Board on debt 

collection and cost-recovery;

•	 To advise Magalies Water on investments, loan requirements, 

bank facilities as well as guide the setting of the borrowing 

limits, guarantees and grant funding for Board’s approval; 

•	 To recommend to the Board the approval of annual tariffs, 

among others.
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The attendance of the Finance Committee Meetings is outlined 

below:

Finance Committee Attendance by Delegation: Frequency per 
Member

Member Attendance

DR Sibanda (Chairperson)  4/4

FP Vilakazi  4/4

MA Hlahla *  2/3

TT Mohapi  4/4

TD Monewe  4/4

Finance Committee Attendance by Invitation

Member Attendance

PN Nkwinika 4/4

Human Resources and Remuneration 
Committee

This Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration, 

ethics and other human resource related policies, succession 

planning, induction, training, as well as the evaluation of the 

Board and its other Committees. The key functional roles and 

responsibilities include:

•	 To recommend to the Board for approval the Executive 

Organisational Structure; 

•	 To regularly review and recommend to the Board for approval, 

all Corporate Services Policies, e.g., Human Resources, 

Records Management and Information, Communication and 

Technology (ICT), among others;

•	 To undertake annual review of the  Committee’s Terms of 

Reference in line with the Board Charter; 

•	 To promote conducive channels of communication between 

the Board and the Executive Management as well as between 

management and staff members, on  matters relating to 

working conditions and remuneration;

•	 To recommend to the Board all relevant activities relating to 

the agreeable minimum services agreement for the Amanzi 

Bargaining Council (ABC);

•	 To review the ABC and provide guidance on feedback on 

various matters pertaining to the South African Municipal 

Workers’ Union (SAMWU) and National Education, Health 

and Allied Workers’ Union (NEHAWU) meetings, including 

the non-unionised employees. These could be in terms of 

compliance to:

- Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) performance  

 and  policies,

- Skills development and training and succession -  

 planning opportunities and targets,

- Employment equity targets, and

- Sharing appropriate processes for commitments;

•	 To oversee the implementation of remuneration and rewards 

policies that are conducive to the achievement of strategic 

objectives and to individual performance. This role includes: 

- Recommending to the Board for approval regarding  

 general annual salary adjustments within Magalies  

 Water’s both bargaining and non-bargaining staff   

 categories; 

- Making recommendations to the Board for   

 the approval of the 2017/2018 performance   

 incentive bonuses for all employees; 

•	 To review and recommend the terms and conditions for 

executive committee service agreements, including review 

of performance and rewards; and 

•	 To perform annual self-assessment. 
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Human Resources and Remuneration Committee  Attendance 
by Delegation: Frequency per Member

Member Attendance

PN Nkwinika (Chairperson)  6/6

DR Sibanda  6/6

TD Monewe  6/6

F Saloojee  6/6

Kgosi SV Suping  4/6

Risk Committee

During the 2017/18 financial year, the Board approved the 

adoption of the National Treasury’s Risk Management Framework 

and revised its Magalies Water Policy, accordingly.  

The Committee fulfils an independent oversight role in guiding 

the management of strategic level risks including opportunities 

available to the organisation. This is carried out through the 

implementation of the approved Strategic Risk Management Plan.  

Among its functional roles, the Committee is responsible for:

•	 Assisting the Board in formulating a Risk Policy and 

Framework which facilitates the implementation of a robust 

Strategic Risk Management Programme;

•	 Making recommendations to the Board concerning risk 

tolerance levels and mitigation thereof;

•	 Providing assurance to the Board on the effectiveness of the 

risk management process;

•	 Ensuring that controls in place are relevant and effective in 

addressing all the identified risks including the ICT risks.

The attendance of the Risk Committee Meetings are outlined as 

follows: 

Risk Committee Attendance by Delegation: Frequency per 
Member

Member Attendance

F Saloojee (Chairperson)  3/4

TF Zondi  3/4

N Mufamadi  1/4

TT Mohapi  4/4

Kgosi SV Suping  4/4

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane  4/4

Risk Committee Attendance by Invitation: Frequency per 
Member

Member Attendance

PN Nkwinika  3/3

Stakeholder Engagement Committee

The Board continues to build strong stakeholders relationships 

by getting involved in the strategic stakeholder engagements, 

whenever necessary. Magalies Water’s approach to stakeholder 

relations has been premised on the principles of the King IV 

Report to ensure that the relationships with stakeholders are in 

compliance with relevant legislation and best practices and are 

ethically managed. 

The key roles and responsibilities of the Stakeholder Engagement 

Committee are to: 

•	 Identify key material stakeholders and addressing the 

material risks and opportunities they present;
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•	 Develop and implement of stakeholder strategies and 

policies;

•	 Develop a mechanism for constructive stakeholder 

engagement with all material stakeholders;

•	 Adopt communication guidelines for stakeholders including 

publication of policies detailing the nature of interaction with 

the stakeholders.

The attendance of the Stakeholder Engagement Committee by 

both delegation and invitation is as follows, respectively.

Stakeholder Engagement Committee Attendance by 
Delegation: Frequency per Member

Member  Attendance

TD Monewe (Chairperson)  4/4

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane  2/4

FP Vilakazi  3/4

TT Mohapi  3/3

Kgosi SV Suping  4/4

Stakeholder Engagement Committee Attendance by 
Invitation: Frequency per Member

Member Attendance

PN Nkwinika  4/4

Code of Conduct and Promotion of 
Ethical Culture

The Accounting Officer promoted the implementation of the 

Ethical Code of Conduct’s related processes through a delegated 

split between the Risk Specialist at internal operational and tactical 

level- and the Company Secretary at strategic Board level. As a 

result, declarations of financial interests, confidentiality, conflict of 

interests and disclosures, were made by employees as provided 

for in the 1997 government’s Code of Conduct’s set standards 

for the Public Service. Practices have been kept in line with the 

Financial Disclosure Framework requirements imposed for senior 

officials. 

At the end of 2017/2018 financial year, the Risk Specialist had 

collected signed disclosures and declarations from all 283 

employees for all employment categories in the organisation. In 

this regard, Magalies Water achieved a 100% compliance. The 

Company Secretary handled the Board Menbers’ declarations at 

Board level, as the  ideal central office to provide advice to the 

Board and the organisation in general on any matter pertaining to 

ethics, conflict of interest, and good governance. Magalies Water 

regards ethical conduct as mandatory to all employees and not 

just for senior management and other designated groups such 

as Supply Chain Management  (SCM) Staff, members of SCM 

Committees . We continuously operate in accordance with the 

Ethics Code of Conduct’s objectives, including:

•	 administratively managing remunerative work conducted by 

employees outside their delegated duties;
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•	 enforcing Regulation 13(c) of the Public Service Regulations, 

2016 (PSR) which prohibited employees from contracting / 

conducting business with any of the South African organs 

of state, as from 1 August 2016. This effectively nullified 

the Section 30 of the Public Service Act, 1994 which had 

allowed employees in the Public Service to perform other 

remunerative work provided that they had written permission 

from the Accounting / Executive Authority. 

•	 promote transparency and prevent business-related conflicts 

of interest with regards to all who attend or even draft and/

or source services based on the specification, evaluation 

and adjudication of tenders / quotations and other relavant 

service requests.

•	 manage errors of sourcing quotations from companies that 

are not on the National Treasury’s Central Supplier Database 

(CSD); 

•	 Refer to recorded portfolio of evidence in protecting the 

company and individuals who may be implicated or facing 

charges of misconduct of all forms; 

•	 Enable individuals to be always conscious of the disclosure 

requirements as they acquire, practice or pursue personal 

financial interests; and  

•	 Ensure that employees execute the company’s delegated 

duties and/or avoid improper influence / biased judgements, 

etc. when acting on behalf of the company.

In summary, governance at Magalies Water has been kept in check 

in line with applicable legislation. The Company Secretary and 

the Executive Committee, have been instrumental in assisting the 

Board to implement the direction of business plans and exercised 

executive control in managing day-to-day operations. Within 

EXCO, Magalies Water has been diligent in ensuring that the 

organisation adheres to the regulatory compliance requirements 

and ensuring synergies with other key role players and statutory 

stakeholders.

The Magalies Water Board supported by its Committees, the 

Executive Committee as well as the Company Secretary, fully 

owned the governance responsibility and fiduciary duties for 

driving good corporate citizenship. The 2017/18 financial 

year Annual Report has been subjected to continuous review 

throughout the financial year.

Magalies Water has a solid foundation that is premised on the 

strength of six (6) Operating Divisions that are supported by five 

(5) General Managers, the Chief Operations Officer, the Chief 

Financial Officer, and the Chief Executive Officer who, collectively, 

constitute the Executive Management Committee (EXCO).
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Mr Sandile Mkhize
Chief Executive Officer
Academic qualifications: 

Masters in Business Administration (Milpark Business School)

M Tech: Environmental Biotechnology (Durban University of Technology)

Management Advancement Programme (Wits Business School)

BSc: Chemistry and Microbiology (University of KwaZulu-Natal)

B Tech: Biotechnology (Durban University of Technology)

Senior Executive Program (Harvard Business School)

Diploma in Advanced Project Management (Damelin)

Mahlomola Mehlo
Chief Operations Officer
Academic qualifications: 

Master of Technology: Civil Engineering  

(Vaal University of Technology)

Master of Science: Project Management  

(University of Pretoria)

Senior Executive Program (Harvard Business School)

Executive Committee Members
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Mr Lovemore Mushayanyama
General Manager: Stakeholder and 

Customer Services
Masters in Business Administration

(University KwaZulu-Natal)

Bachelor of Business Administration in

Marketing and Communications (Institute of

Marketing Management Graduate School)

Diploma in Marketing (Institute of Marketing

Management Graduate School)

Certificate in Project Management

(Stellenbosch University) 

Mr Pholetsi Moseki 
Chief Financial Officer
Academic qualifications: 

Bachelor of Accounting Science

(University of South Africa)

Bachelor of Accounting Science

(Honours)/CTA (University of South Africa)

Chartered Accountant (SA)

Ms Tsakane Radebe
General Manager: Project Management Unit

Academic qualifications:

National Diploma: Mechanical Engineering

(University of Johannesburg)

Bachelor of Technology: Mechanical Engineering 

(Vaal University of Technology)

Certified Associate in Project Management

(Project Management Institute)

 Project Management Professional

(Project Management Institute)

Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administration
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Vacant 

General Manager: Engineering Services

Ms Puleng Ratlabala 
General Manager: Corporate Services

Academic qualifications: 

Bachelor of Arts Honours (University of Limpopo)

Bachelor of Arts (University of Limpopo)

Senior Management Programme (Milpark Business School)

Ms Lerato Morake 
General Manager: Water Services

Academic qualifications: 

BSc in Education (University of Northwest)

Masters in Business Leadership

(University of South Africa)

Baccalaureus of Science Honours with specialisation in 

Applied Science: Water Utilisation

(University of Pretoria)
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06 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 
AND CONTEXT

Vision
To be the leading provider of quality water services in 
South Africa

Mission
Magalies Water Board provides water services to Water 

Services Authorities, Water Services Institutions and 

other users, which positively impact the quality of life and 

economic growth for communities in our area of operation. 

Strategic Intent
The Strategic Intent of Magalies Water is to meet its 

Mandate of sustainable water provision and this will be 

achieved through reliable provision of quality water services 

and contribution to the socio economic development in 

the service areas.
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Magalies Water is guided by its Values, which are used as 

anchor-points to establish the manner in which we approach our 

activities and how we relate to each other and our Stakeholders. 

Magalies Water further relies on the commitment and dedication 

of each of the staff members in fulfilling its Vision and Mission. 

This Entity aspires to be both a leader in the delivery of quality 

services and an employer of choice.

The development and retention of the best human capital is at 

the core of the Magalies Water strategy and underpins the worth 

it places on the organisation’s most valuable assets – its people. 

To this end, Magalies Water has embarked on an extensive 

exercise to revive the spirit inherent in its Values as a means to re-

imagine the Magalies Water of the future, in which the personnel 

thrive and excel in their areas of operation.

Core Values 
and Cultural 
Behaviours
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Integrity

Competence

The Culture of  
Magalies Water 
is Guided by its 

Values
We deliver services 
with a high level of 

professionalism

We do what we say 
we’re going to do - 

always

Eco-efficiency

Our practices reflect 
our care for the 

natural environment

Good Corporate 
Citizenship

We strive for the 
development of a 

sustainable economy 
and the wellbeing of 

our community

Service Quality
We endeavour to 
meet customer 

requirements in all 
we do
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Turning Values to 
Culture
Magalies Water has committed to revive the internal 

communication mechanisms in order to foster trust 

and to ensure synergy/coherence between internally 

and externally disseminated information. Furthermore, 

Magalies Water will continue to maintain a responsive, 

timeous and proactive consumer-centric service approach 

to fulfil the aspirations to excel in delivering services to 

customers. The set standards and performance measures 

will strategically re-build the Magalies Water brand, 

reputation, good standing and in the medium to long 

term, assist in the expansion of the utility’s footprint.

PRIMARY AND 
OTHER LEGISLATIVE 
MANDATES
Purpose of the Public Entity (Magalies Water) and 
Relevance of the Legislative Mandate

Magalies Water is a Schedule 3B: State-owned Entity 

(SoE) established in terms of the Water Services Act, 

1997 (Act 108 of 1997 as amended, WSAct).  Magalies 

Water’s operating relevance (social licence to operate) and 

its critical role are grounded in the legislative Mandate 

derived from the Water Services Act, 1997, which it to 

ensure that the State complies with the Bill of Rights as 

enshrined in Chapter 2 of  the Constitution of the Republic 

of South Africa, 1996 (Act 108 of 1996).  As a State-Owned 

Entity, Magalies Water service area and operations are 

governed by, among other, the following legislations:

1. According to Chapter 2: Bill of Rights of the 

Constitution, that the State must respect, protect, 

promote and fulfil the rights of all people in our 

country and affirm the democratic values of human 

dignity, equality and freedom. Explicitly, Section 10 

states that everyone has Rights to human dignity and 

Section 11 speaks of everyone’s Right to life.

2. The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 [(Act 1 

of 1999 as amended, PFMA)]: The PFMA classifies 

Magalies Water as a Schedule 3(B) Entity: National 

Government Business Enterprise.
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3. The National Water Act, 1998 [(Act 36 of 1998 as 

amended, (NWA)] and its Regulations: The NWA 

provides that the National Government is the public 

trustee of the nation’s water resources. Acting through 

the Minister of Water and Sanitation, the national 

government has the power to regulate the use, flow 

and control of all water in the Republic. The goal is 

to protect, use, develop, conserve and manage water 

resources in a sustainable and equitable manner for 

the benefit of all persons.

4. The Water Services Act, 1997 (Act 108 of 1997 as 

amended): The WSA provides for the right of access 

to the basic water supply and the right to basic 

sanitation services, establishes the Water Boards 

(Section 28) and defines their primary (Section 29) 

and secondary functions (Section 30). The latter could 

even be extended to regional and / or continental / 

beyond the borders of South Africa.

STRATEGIC BUSINESS OPERATING 
AND REPORTING CONTEXT

Brief Overview of Magalies Water Business Value 
Chain Activities

In terms of the law, the Minister of the Department of Water 

and Sanitation (DWS) is the custodian of water resources 

(dams) from which Magalies Water extracts raw water  to 

our Treatmnent plants.  Upon processing, Magalies Water  

channels its potable water from its own Water Treatment 

Plants through own assets (pipelines)  to Water Service 

Authorities and other users (customers). The main split 

is in terms of Section 29 and Section 30 Activities of the 

Water Services Act as detailed below.

Primary Activities (Section 29)

 
The primary activity of a Water Board in South Africa is 

to provide bulk water services to other water services 

institutions within its service areas (Section 29). For 

Magalies Water, the raw water is obtained through various 

intermediaries (e.g. dams, mining associated sources, etc.) 

that are linked to two major catchments of the Crocodile 

and the Pienaars Rivers.  

Magalies Water services extend over an area of 42,000 

km² (refer to the  area map below) that cuts across three 

South African Provinces, namely, the North West, Limpopo 

and Gauteng.
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Location of Water Supply Areas

Depicting: Magalies Water Service Area Map
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Magalies Water Customers

Magalies Water provides bulk potable water to the following Water Service Authorities, in terms its core customers 

(Section 29).

Key Customers: Water Service Authorities

Water Service Authorities Water Service Authorities 

Rustenburg Local Municipality Modimolle - Mookgopong Local Municipality 

Moses Kotane Local Municipality Bela-Bela Local Municipality 

Thabazimbi Local Municipality City of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality 

Other (mostly Section 30) major customers benefitting from Magalies Water in terms of bulk water supply and direct 

provisions of water through servitude arrangements and where there is no local municipal infrastructure available,  include 

the following:

Major Customers 

Customers Names Customers Names

Bafokeng Rasimone Platinum Mine Pilanesberg Platinum Mines

Bakubung Minerals Rhino Andalusite Mine

Carousel Casino Royal Bafokeng Administration

Cullinan Diamond Mine SA Ferrochrome (Pty)Ltd

Impala Platinum Mine Sun City

Northam Platinum Limited Union Section Joint Venture
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Water Treatment Plants

Magalies Water owns and operates the following Water Treatment Plants and associated Pipelines comprising of:

•	 Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant 

 The Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant (VWTP), with a design capacity of 270ML/day, functions on raw water abstracted 

from the Vaalkop Dam in the Crocodile River Catchment area. The treated potable water is distributed to the North 

West and Limpopo provinces.

Vaalkop Plant 3 Sedimentation Tank 

Overflow Weir with Bulking Sludge 

and Accumulated Suspended Solids.

Vaalkop Plant 4 Sedimentation Tank Overflow Weirs - V-Notch Type.
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•	 Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant 

The Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant (KWTP), has a design capacity of 42ML/day and the raw water abstracted from 

the nearby Roodeplaat Dam in the Pienaars River Catchment area, is treated and then distributed across Limpopo 

and Gauteng Provinces 
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•	 Cullinan Water Treatment Plant (CWTP)

The Cullinan Water Treatment Plant (CWTP) has a design capacity of 16ML/day, functions on raw water abstracted 

from the Bronkhorstspruit dam that is also located within the Pienaars River Catchment area. The treated potable 

water is supplied to the Cullinan Diamond Mine and the City of Tshwane.



46 Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018

•	 Wallmannsthal Water Treatment Plant

The Wallmannsthal Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) has a design capacity of 12ML/day. Together with the KWTP, it 

processes raw water abstracted from the Roodeplaat Dam in the Pienaars River Catchment area. WWTP supplies 

potable water to the City of Tshwane and to other individual Customers.
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Other Activities (Section 30)

In partnership with the DWS, municipalities, and  

Private Sector, Magalies Water entered into Contractual 
Agreements to perform Section 30 responsibilities such as 

being the implementing agent, and as per the Minister’s 

directive.

 

Magalies Water is capacitated and capable to perform 

the secondary activities to enhance the optimisation of 

the value chain of water services business in South Africa. 

Specifically, we possess good and relevant experience 

gained through programmes that were rolled out. 

Below is an outline of our infrastructure and enabling 

tools, to offer seamless and compliant services:

1. Infrastructure refurbishment 

2. Potable water and wastewater treatment solutions 

ranging from consultancy services, treatment, 

monitoring and operation of potable water and 

wastewater treatment plants 

3. Rapid response on critical interventions required on 

water and sanitation 

4. Water conservation and demand management

5. Operations and Maintenance (O&M) of bulk water 

supply and bulk sanitation infrastructure 

6. Magalies Water Scientific Services: The SANAS 17025 

accredited laboratory-offering services in chemical, 

environmental and microbiological analyses for the 

water industry. 
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Macro Operating 
Environment
The operations of Magalies Water are affected and 

influenced by the following external environmental factors:

Political Environment

The political landscape, particularly the policy position 

on Institutional Reforms and Realignment (IRR) provides 

a strategic imperative for Magalies Water to grow. The 

perception that municipalities’ capabilities in water 

services delivery and operations of water and sanitation 

infrastructure are, generally, considered as being highly 

or extremely vulnerable, and provide an opportunity for 

Magalies Water to grow through providing necessary 

interventions (e.g., Section 30). The different approaches 

to land redistribution (e.g. land grabs) came up during 

the financial year 2017/18 and Magalies Water continued 

to ensure that servitudes and land asset pockets that are 

necessary for its operations, are kept intact in line with the 

growth (expansion) plans.

Economic Environment

Constrained economic growth, tight fiscal policies, effects 

of monetary policy and the recent sovereign credit rating 

downgrades have an impact on the desired future capital 

infrastructure, particularly in light of the implementation of 

high austerity measures. Magalies Water had no Directives 

from the Shareholder with regards to alternative funding, 

apart from the grant funding for the socio-economic 

components of projects to be maintained at required 

levels.

Magalies Water, however, explored other areas of funding 

to improve operational efficiencies in realising cost savings 

and established itself in its service areas. Magalies Water 

set some ambitious targets of the funding mix, including 

capital contributions by customers, grant funding and 

borrowings only to the extent of improved cash flows 

and bankable projects, for the future. Magalies Water 

is cognisant of the fact that net cash flows will need 

improvements to bring investments to optimal levels within 

the constraints of the latest increase in value added tax 

(VAT) and the exchange rate relating to the Rand volatility. 

Social or Societal Issues (Demographic / Socio-
Economic) Factors

The majority of the communities that we serve are in rural 

areas and in informal settlements that are poverty-stricken 

and occupied by people with low levels of education 

and income. The mines lay-offs increase unemployment. 

This has exposed Magalies Water to changing spatial 

patterns, population growth, and political volatility. The 

increasing demand for water services made us to continue 

to capacitate and strengthen our functions in risk and 

business continuity planning to respond appropriately to 

mission critical activities pertaining to the spirit of Batho 

Pele and 4th  industrial revolution.
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Technological Factors

Water utilities across the world have already embraced the 

principles of the fourth industrial revolution in the utilisation 

of big data for the management of  their  operations. 

The internet and technology are viewed as one of the 

big disruptors in the business models of organisations. 

Magalies Water continues to embrace technology in the 

enhancement of our service levels to our customers and 

other stakeholders throughout the value chain.

The continued deterioration of raw material resources 

has challenged Magalies Water to continue exploring 

technologically advanced water treatment processes that 

are both efficient and economical, such as dissolved air 

floatation (DAF), Ozonation, and Reverse Osmosis (RO).

Environmental (Ecological) Challenges

Global warming and climate change requires adaptation 

strategies as they have an adverse impact on the 

hydrological systems. Groundwater resource diminishes 

at a faster rate than it can be naturally replenish and this 

translate to the surface water scarcity; one of the key 

business disruptors within the emergent concept of the 

water-food-energy nexus. Along the same lines, dam levels 

where Magalies Water operate, were crucially low at some 

point. But we were fortunate  not  to  have  experienced 

the drought levels encountered in other parts of South 

Africa in particular, and the Southern African Development 

Community (SADC) region, in general.

Legal and/or Regulatory Environment

The current legislation on the water sector provided 

an environment that is conducive to business growth. 

Magalies Water prepared itself with respect to the 

envisaged Institutional Reform and Realignment (IRR) 

processes. Similarly, the DWS process of establishing an 

independent regulator for water through the National 

Water Infrastructure Agency may change the modes of 

interaction between the Water Boards and the DWS, 

particularly the benefits associated with Section 30. As 

with all risks, Magalies Water is aware of the opportunities 

for optimising its services in this context.
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PART B
BUSINESS MODEL AND  
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
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1. REPORT PROFILE

1.1.	 Materiality and Significance

Magalies Water considers the reporting period of 2017/18 

financial year to be a landmark for the first five (5)-year 

Corporate Plans, which started  in  2013/14 and ended 

in June 2017/18. Both qualitatively and quantitatively, the 

presentation of the information in this Report is in terms 

of the overall execution of the Magalies Water Corporate 

Plans since the 2013/14 financial year. Where it is possible, 

linkages of the annual non- financial performance 

(2017/18) in the prior four (4) years are highlighted. The 

reported financial performance has also been guided 

by the global accounting guidance of the International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and is modelled, to 

an extent, along the guidelines of integrated reporting as 

envisaged in King IV.

This Report is designed on the basis of a sample of six (6) 

business value creation principles, as outlined below;

a. Strategic and Futuristic Focus: The 2017/18 Annual 

Report marks the end of the past Five-Year Corporate 

Planning cycle (2013/14 to 2017/18). During the 

financial year, Magalies Water concluded the Growth 

Strategic Plan to inform the next five years as captured 

in the Corporate Plans for  2018/19 to 20122/23. 

With these two (2) periods, Magalies Water has a 10-

year spectrum of how the organisation created value 

in the past and how the experience gained will be 

synergised to growing the organisation in the future 

rollout of the short, medium and long term goals. 

BUSINESS MODEL AND 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION PART B: 
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b. Accuracy and Completeness of Information: The 

support of the Internal Audit function, although it was 

outsourced up to the end of the reporting period, 

assisted in ensuring that the information was verified 

quarterly for accuracy. The 2017/18 Consolidated 

Annual Report is a culmination of the controls that 

were implemented to reduce material errors. For 

each financial year referred to (2013/14 to 2017/18), 

the information has been considered for trends. 

The statements of acceptance, confirmation and 

commitments from the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 

Chairman of the Board have been included. The 

succinct, comprehensive and transparent Statements 

from the Chairman of the Audit Committee and 

independent third party assurance providers (including 

the Auditor General), bear testimony in this regard. 

c. Comparable Benchmarking - Consistency and 
Trends: Magalies Water has ‘created’ a visible year-

on-year internal comparative view of the performance 

information that was published in the past years. 

Trends have been presented graphically in relation 

to the 2017/18 financial year, in order to establish 

areas of consistency over time. The approach in this 

Annual Report makes it possible to create mind-

maps of how the next five (5) years might have in 

store for us if we continue with the trajectory trends 

from the past five (5) years. The compilation of this 

Annual Report has been guided by extensive research 

on how other organisations; in general, design their 

integrated Annual Reports in terms of best practice. 

Other valuable sources included Reports from other 

Water Boards, especially those that are better graded 

than Magalies Water. The end result has been to also 

BUSINESS MODEL AND 
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 

consider how Magalies Water Report would become 

an input document to the Report of the Department 

of Water and Sanitation.

d. Dependability and Reliability: A deliberate dipstick 

survey of Stakeholder Perception to determine the 

nature and quality of the stakeholders’ views of the 

organisation’s sense of inclusivity, responsiveness 

and sensitivity to their needs, was conducted to 

improve relationships. This helped Magalies Water  to 

understand how and to what extent we should handle 

the stakeholders’ legitimate interests, needs and 

expectations. 

e. Lessons Learnt: Holistic and Balanced Information: 
The best that it can be, the presentation of this Report 

takes into account the interrelatedness, inter-linkages 

and inter-dependencies of the various internal and 

external (collaborative and co-determination) factors 

that influence our value creation. Typical examples 

would include Magalies Water’s ability to or not to 

meet infrastructure-related targets during the 2013/14 

to 2017/18) rollout period. The latter’s impact in 

the past and for monitoring into the future, was the 

organisation’s inability to create 500 temporal jobs in 

2015/16 as it was planned. The lessons learnt from 

this and other experiences have been incorporated 

into the future corporate and strategic growth plans. 
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2. BUSINESS MODEL 

Magalies Water’s business model is anchored on corporate plans that have been revolving for the past five (5) years. 

Depicted below is a summarised view of the various focal points over which Magalies Water has managed its approach 

towards growing the business. The picture depicts strategic progression as measured against the milestones on the basis 

of four or five year corporate planning periods.

In creating synergies between performance and business continuity, this Annual Report presents a quantum leap view 

of the journey well-travelled since 2013/14. To this effect, the annual 2017/18 performance, excellence and related 

challenges provide a baseline for reference during the execution of corporate plans in the next five years 

The structure of this Report also includes pictures and /or graphs that are believed to be value adding for comparative 

purposes. The organisation is now on a good footing to take stock and plan better going forward.
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Micro Environmental Analysis Unpacked - Grounded on 7 - S Framework

The Magalies Water Corporate Plans have consistently included forward the sentiments carried through the key outcomes 

of the internal environmental analysis as captured in the adopted 7-S Framework in order to sustain a balance of the 

developmental agenda initiatives in terms of the internal and external world views. Our alignment with the mandate of 

the Shareholder is captured in the internal processes that match the industry’s operating socio-economic environment.

The Analysis of the 7 - S Framework Guidelines

Aspect Key outcome

Strategy The organisational strategy is designed and the trajectory is well defined but funding of 
capital expansions remains a key challenge to  strategic aspirations.

Structure The organisational structure is well designed for effective delivery of the primary core of 
Magalies Water (Section 29). We can also deliver on Section 30 activities, although some 
enhancement is required. 

Skills Provision of quality water services is achievable – we have skills development initiatives that 
are directly linked to our primary mandate. Our core competencies of treating and supplying 
bulk quality water remains sustainable and our Laboratory Services results show constant 
compliance to SANS 241: 2015 and they sre above targets

Style Our style is geared towards being a learning organisation that takes into account the 
growth of infrastructure networks and complexity of operations. This informs the core 
competencies and distinct capabilities of the organisation. 

Staff We endeavour to consciously plan and develop actions to address the employment equity 
targets to achieve women and people with disability targets for the workforce distribution 
and demographics. We are aware of the fact that the institutional memory lies with the 
younger generation.

Systems An integration system across the entire business value chain and automation of some critical 
business processes have been ongoing. Our Research and Development Team looked for 
alternative water treatment systems that can treat all forms of resilient modern day pollutants 
in raw water and optimisation of processes, including the real-time GIS- based meter reading 
that was piloted in  2017/18

Superordinate 
Goals

Our goals encompass and embed performance contracting in order to align individual 
performance to the organisational performance.
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2.1	  Outline of Business Operations

Magalies Water operations provide a rationale on how various inputs are transformed through business activities into 

specific outcomes. Our business model is based on the resultant valuable impacts of our activities and outcomes to our 

stakeholders.

2.1.1.	 Value Chain
The value chain is contextualised within “source-to-source” wherein a role is played across all the components of the water 

supply from the dam to the end user. From a customer / supplier matrix perspective, below is the pictorial presentation 

of the value chain that is contextualised by the reflection in the picture of the core operational processes (that entail 

transformation of raw water into quality potable water that is ultimately supplied to customers), and the support of the 

core processes to the providers, and suppliers of tap water to communities.

2.1.2	 Inputs through to Outputs of the Business Model

Value Chain Add-Ons to the Service Delivery Mix 
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The inputs to the business model are articulated in terms of various capitals that are tabulated (at high level) below, and 

these include financial, manufactured, intellectual, human, social and relationship, and natural capitals. 

i. Specific business activities:  Inputs into Outputs Transformation Process

Magalies Water follows a scientific process as shown below and uses modern technologies at our treatment facilities to 

transform inputs into outputs.

2.1.3	 Outputs to the Business Model
The ultimate goal is the production of the potable water that complies with the quality requirements of the SANS 241:2015 

throughout the financial year as per performance monitoring reports. 

Pre-oxidation: a process before the usage of Water Treatment 
Plant to improve the removal of some chemical substances 
during treatment.  It is also effective in  reducing biological 
growths in the Water Treatment Plant

Pre - ozonation: an advanced oxidation 
process, involving the production of very 
reactive oxygen (ozone) that is able to attack 
a wide range of organic compounds and all 
micro-organisms;

Lime Softening: that entails 
addition of lime (Calcium 
Hydroxide) to remove hardness 
(calcium and magnesium) ions by 
precipitation;

Adsorption: a process, also known as Powdered Activated 
Carbon (PAC) is used for the adsorption of contaminants and 
it is effective in removing certain organics, such as unwanted 
taste, odours and micro-pollutants from drinking water; 

Dissolved Air Flotation Filtration (DAFF): a 
compact water treatment process that involves 
the use of both Dissolved Air Flotation and a sand 
filter combined as one unit

Post Chlorination: process that occurs 
before water leaves the treatment 
plant. It is the addition of chlorine to 
the water in order to prevent harmful 
microbial growth;

Chloramination: a treatment of drinking water by 
adding small amounts of ammonia to chlorinated 
water which reacts together to form Chloramine (also 
called combined Chlorine), a long-lasting disinfectant, 
typically used for long distribution systems

Input Output

Magalies Water  
Business Activities

Process
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2.1.4	 Outcomes to the Business Model

The relationship of the resultant Key Outcomes and Inputs’ Impact of the Value Chain referred to above, are tabulated 

as follows.

Impact of Key Outcomes and Inputs to the Value Chain

Capital Deliberate Inputs’ Impacts to Key Outcomes 

Financial Revenue generation of R586,409 million and a surplus of R114 million were achieved for 2017/18 financial 
year compared to revenue of 515 million and a surplus of R95 million (2016/17). The organisation 
provided quality water services though a mixture of grants and own investments on capital expenditure 
requirements. There were no borrowings during 2017/18. The 50 Debtor Days target was missed and 
the year closed on 100 Debtor Days instead.

Manufactured Magalies Water used its own assets (in the form of treatment facilities and pipe lines) in the production 
and distribution of water and the targets with the exception of the sales volumes, were achieved.  
Translated to monetary terms, R185,365 million was invested in income producing assets and a 
carrying value of about R2,77 billion was on non-current assets that are for water production and 
distribution. 

Intellectual As per the 7_S Framework, knowledge based intangibles such as software, servitudes, systems, 
procedures and protocols were fully employed. Intangible assets to the carrying value of R33,465 
million in organisational knowledge, servitudes, though less than the R36 million of the prior year, 
remain meaningful to the going concern.

Human Employee turnover ratio of 3% was achieved for the year; a critical input capital to retain to keep 
strategic management alive. Magalies Water was in the hands of competent and experienced staff. 
The staff complement grew from 266 (2016/17) to 283 (2017/18) and capabilities were enhanced in line 
with the organisational governance framework, risk management and organisational strategic thrust. 
Some general workers were capacitated up to the level of tradesmen as reported under the Coprporate 
Services Division of this Report, among others. Other details of initiatives on enterprise wide risk 
management are covered under the Office of the chief Executive’s Risk Management Department. 

Social and 
relationship

Good reputation and relationships with communities, stakeholder-groupings (regulators and other 
networks measurements were represented through Bulk Supply Agreements (81,63% vs 80% targeted) 
performance levels, engagement meetings and corporate social investment programmes that were all 
100% achieved for enhanced collective societal well-being related activities.  The 90 595 873 kilolitres 
of water supplied that was achieved, exceeded the 88 728 474 target of kilolitres of water supplied for 
social and economic use; this far exceeded the performance of 83 145 199 kilolitres of water that were 
supplied during the financial year 2016/17.

Natural A baseline for the Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Kg CO2e) is 108 853 and Magalies Water has set itself 
against it as a measure for comparison for future impacts, over a number of years. In this Report (2017/18), 
Magalies Water presents some energy efficient pilot projects, eradication of alien plant species, for 
example, that were rolled out in the past year. We are cognisant of the fact that water resources are 
environmental fundamentals to enable sustainability of  our business
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2.1.5	 Value Creation

At the centre of the business model of Magalies Water is 

the creation of a mutual long-term sustainable value to 

both Stakeholders and Magalies Water. 

3. REPORT CONSIDERATION AND   

 PROFILING

All the relevant matters of significane that influence 

performance of Magalies Water were considered to 

achieve the overall organisational performance that is 

presented in this Report. The Strategy of Magalies Water 

articulates a vision that seeks to create coherence between 

its operations, objectives of government as contained 

in the reform agenda set out in NDP, and ultimately the 

achievement of the sustainable development goals. We 

remain committed to consistently contribute to inclusive 

growth that will lead to job creation, poverty eradication, 

and reduction of inequality. Due to the fact that the water 

sector is one of the most inequitable in our society, the 

strategic vision of Magalies Water is underpinned by 

equitable and efficient distribution of water to address 

socio-economic challenges.  Our industry environment is 

characterised by, among others, low economic growth, 

increasing fiscal constraints and declining availability of 

water resources.  

3.1	 Strategy and Performance 

Strategic opportunities were identified through a study 

that looked at how to increase revenue to R 2 billion over 

two years. These entailed growing the business towards 

reducing the deficit between the increasing population 

levels, changing spatial patterns and our own contribution 

to the service delivery backlogs in South Africa, and in 

our service areas in particular. The Growth Strategy Plan 

provided 50 potential projects that would also position 

us strategically in support of the government’s envisaged 

institutional reforms and realignment policy. The key pillars 

of our strategy implementation included the following:

•	 Plan, design and deliver enhanced water treatment 

facilities within funding constraints and a commitment 

to perform due diligence to two of 50 Growth Plan 

initiatives during 2018/19.

•	 Deliver water services that  comply with the required 

standards of water quality, reliability and client 

satisfaction;

•	 Enhance capacity for delivery of Section 30 activities 

such that supply and demand of those activities are 

aligned;

•	 Maintain financial sustainability within approved 

tariffs;
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•	 Develop human resources of Magalies Water, 

suppliers and communities through transformation, 

skills development, local employment and enterprise 

development;

•	 Provide efficient and effective business support in 

finance, supply chain management, information 

communication and technology (ICT), governance 

and risk management; and

•	 Engage shareholders, clients and stakeholders to 

incorporate their specific influence on operations and 

planning.

3.2  Strategic Objectives, Indicators, 
Planned Targets and Actual 
Performance

To further provide effect to the key pillars of the strategy, 

presented in this Report are the Strategic Objectives, 

performance indicators and targets that had been set on 

a predetermined basis as per the Shareholder Compact 

(2017/18). This Annual Report is submitted to the relevant 

regulatory stakeholders in order to comply with the 

legislative mandate imposed through Paragraph 29 of  

the Treasury Regulations and the PFMA and any other 

applicable frameworks pertaining to reporting on the 

status of state-owned entity (SOE) performance monitoring 

information.  

 

In addition, the Report provides transparency in the 

manner in which Magalies Water applied the business 

imperatives in the sphere of measuring its success rate 

on the execution of its organisational strategy. The 

predetermined strategic key performance areas (KPAs) 

and key performance indicators (KPIs) as articulated in 

the Corporate Plan and its related Shareholders Compact 

form the basis for the reported level of success measured 

during the strategy implementation plans.   

 

Both the Corporate Plan (2017/18 – 2020/22) and the 

adapted Shareholder Compact (2017/18) share the 

definition of the following strategic perspectives:  

	 Organisational Efficiency and Effectiveness

	 Financial and Governance

	 Customer and Stakeholder Interaction

	 Organisational Capacity

3.3 Summary of Achievements

As at the end of the financial year ended 30 June 2018, 

Magalies Water’s reportable annual performance level 

was at 93% due to two key performance indicators that 

were not achieved. Overall, Magalies Water achieved 25 

key performance indicators against the target of 27 key 

performance indicators planned for the financial year.
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Table 1: 2017/18 Financial Year as at the end of June 2018

Performance Perspective Performance Meeting 
Expectations

Performance 
Not Meeting 
Expectations

Total

Organisational Effectiveness and 
Efficiency 6 1 7

Finance and Governance 11 1 12

Customer and Stakeholder Interaction 6 0 6

Organisational Capacity 2 0 2

25 2 27

7%
2

93%
25

Target NOT 
Archieved

Target 
Archieved

2017/18 Graphical Year-To-Date Overall Performance

The above results represent performance 

information that has been audited by the 

Internal Audit function of Magalies Water as well 

as the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA). 

The two unachieved key performance indicators 

were from both financial and non-financial 

perspectives. The sections that follow provide 

the respective corrective actions and measures 

put in place to prevent repetition.
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3.4 Overview of Performance

This part of the Report details performance information 

for all the key performance indicators (KPIs) based on 

the Template of the Shareholder Compact. It should be 

noted that the KPIs that Magalies Water did not commit 

to implement are indicated with “Not Applicable” or 

“N/A” and they are marked as achieved. This is in line with 

the advice received from the Department of Water and 

Sanitation. The reasons for the Department to prefer these 

“Not Applicable” or “N/A” Key Performance Indicators 

is that the entire list is taken into account during their 

assessment of the Water Boards’ performance and if it is 

not included, they would not know if the exclusion is by 

omission or design.

3.4.1  Outlining Performance Targets   
 not Achieved 

3.4.1.1  Finance and Governance 

• Average Debtors Days 

The actual of 100 Debtor Days doubled the target of 50 

Debtor Days.  

3.4.1.2  Organisational Effectiveness and Efficiency 

• Disabling Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR) 

 The actual performance of 1.73 exceeded the target 
of 1. Magalies Water had two (2) separate incidents 
during the financial year, i.e., one (1) car related 
occurrence that involved employees from two (2) 
Water Treatment Plants, and one (1) hand injury 
related incident. 

3.4.2  Outlining Corrective Actions 
3.4.2.1 Finance and Governance 

• Average Debtors Days: Strategy to Overcome Under-

Performance

The Debtor Days target was not achieved due to some of 
our major customers’ delays in payment. In this regard, 
Magalies Water constantly engages with Debtors whose 
accounts have been outstanding for long, including 
agreeing on debt settlement plans. Remedies adopted 
and other future considerations include the review 
of the Debt Collection Policy as well as following the 
legal proceedings where necessary. The restriction of 
water supply has been applied, where appropriate.

3.4.2.2 Organisational Effectiveness and Efficiency

• Disabling Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR): Strategy to 

Overcome Under-Performance

Magalies Water is actively engaging with all its employees 
and contractors on incident management. Occurrences 
are investigated for root cause analysis purposes. Incidents 
are also reported to EXCO on a monthly basis in order to 
ensure that assurance interventions are implented on time 
and the control effectiveness and/or relevance is verified. 
The Safety Health and Environmental Management (SHE) 
Department has been moved to the Operations Division 
as from the 2018/19 financial year,  in order to enhance 
SHE-oversight function and Staff visibility to Operations’ 

Staff. This creates synergy among the various role players
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3.5  Performance Trends

During 2017/18 financial year, Magalies Water continued (except for the 2015/16 period where the performance achieved 

was 62%) to show consistency and strong performance of above 80% since 2013/14. This Annual Report for the financial 

year 2017/18 marks the end of the first Five-Year Strategic Plan that was implemented with effect from 2013/14 financial 

year. The exceptional performance of 93% overall, represents the best achievement in concluding the previous 5-Year 

strategic planning cycle. The Graph below depicts the overall organisational performance over the past five (5) years.

93%
83%

80%
62%

88%

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Linked to the strong organisational performance over the past five years referred to above, is the consistent achievement 

of the Unqualified Audit Opinion by the Auditor General of South Africa during the same 5-Year span.

Years 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Audit Opinion (AGSA) Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified 

Number of Audit Findings 48 29 45 81 11

The Table above shows that Magalies Water had a drastic drop in the number of Audit Findings from the highest 

(81:2016/17) to the lowest (11:2017/18) by 30 June 2018. The implementation of the recommendations made in the 

2016/ 2017 Audit Report including the continuous supervision of the processes resulted in the significant reduction of the 

weaknesses identified. The Audit Findings from AGSA are represented in the Graph below. 

93%

83%

80%

62%

88%

93%

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Percentage Achievement of Predetermined Annual Objectives - 2013/14 to 2017/18



64 Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18

The above  trends demonstrate that Magalies Water is leveraging on the lessons learned, including the prudent efforts 

that were adopted in the past financial year on improving risk management, internal control and governance rocesses. 

We are aiming for the Unqualified Audit Opinion with no Findings (Clean Audit) from 2018/19 financial year and beyond.

Legend: Symbolic Colour Codes

Target not achieved Target achieved

4. DETAILED PERFORMANCE PER STRATEGIC PERSPECTIVE

The Section below illustrates performance for 2017/18 period ending 30 June 2018 per perspective:
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Number of Audit Findings: Trend over 5 Years (AGSA Reports)
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4.1	Organisational effectiveness and efficiency

 
. 
#

Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator Annual Target

Year to 
date Actual 

Performance

Status of 
Indicator Reasons for variances

1

To provide 
quality 
potable 
water

Bulk potable water 
quality compliance 
to SANS 241:2015 
standards

Acute  1  ≥ 97% 100%  

2 Acute  2 ≥ 97% 100%

3 Chronic  ≥ 95% 99,47%

4 Aesthetic ≥ 93% 98,10%

5 Operational ≥ 93% 96,94%

6

To provide 
sustainable 
water 
services 
to bulk 
customers

Percentage 
average water 
losses 

Plants: <7% 1,89%  

7 Distribution: <5 % 4,25%

8

Number of 
incidents of 
continuous service 
interruption 
exceeding 48 
hours

9 incidents 1 incidents

9
Number of 
kilolitres sales 
volumes sold

88 728 474 
Kilolitres 90 595 873

 

10

Percentage 
overall projects 
completion within 
target milestones

>90% 100%

 

11

Actual CAPEX 
spend on 
expansion related 
projects (initiatives 
by the Minister) as 
% of budget

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW
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4.2	Finance and Governance

# Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator Annual Target

Year to 
date Actual 
Performance

Status of 
Indicator Reasons for variances

12

To achieve 
growth and 
sustainable 
financial 
returns 

Achieved audit 
outcomes

Unqualified for 
2017/18 

Unqualified for 
2017/18

13

Number of repeat 
and unresolved 
internal audit 
findings

Repeat (0)  Repeat (0)
 

Unresolved (5) Unresolved (5)

14

Number of 
breaches to the 
materiality and 
significance 
framework

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

15 Current Ratio 1.5:1 1.6:1

 

16 Gross profit margin
(Primary activities) 20% 31%

 

17
Gross profit 
margin (Secondary 
activities)

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

18 Net profit margin 12% 21%
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19

To achieve 
growth and 
sustainable 
financial 
returns

Net profit margin 
(Secondary 
activities)

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

20 Debt/Equity ratio 0% 0%

 

21 Return on Assets 4% 6%

 

22 Percentage costs 
to revenue 80% 69%

23
Percentage staff 
costs to total 
operating costs

<32% 32%

 

24

Repairs and 
maintenance as % 
of Property, plant 
and equipment

≥0.93% 1,06%

 

4.2	 Finance and Governance 

# Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator Annual Target

Year to 
date Actual 
Performance

Status of 
Indicator Reasons for variances
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4.2	 Finance and Governance

25

To achieve 
growth and 
sustainable 
financial returns

Average debtors 
days 50 days 100 days

The Debtor Days target was 
not achieved due to some 
of our major customers’ 
delays in payment. In this 
regard, Magalies Water 
constantly engages with 
Debtors whose accounts 
have been outstanding for 
long, including agreeing 
on debt settlement plans. 
Remedies adopted and 
other future considerations 
include the review of the 
Debt Collection Policy 
as well as following the 
legal proceedings where 
necessary. The restriction 
of water supply has 
been applied, where 
appropriate.

26 Average creditors 
days 30 days 28,51

 

27 Spend N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

28 Financial Report N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

# Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator Annual Target

Year to 
date Actual 
Performance

Status of 
Indicator Reasons for variances
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29

To achieve 
growth and 
sustainable 
financial returns

Actual CAPEX 
spend on 
expansion related 
projects  as % 
of Total CAPEX 
budget  (previously 
in measured in 
Milestones)

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

30
Overall project 
completion dates 
within targets

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

31
Overall project 
expenditure within 
R target

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

32

Percentage of total 
turnover

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

4.2	 Finance and Governance

# Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator Annual Target

Year to 
date Actual 
Performance

Status of 
Indicator Reasons for variances
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# Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator Annual Target

Year to 
date Actual 
Performance

Status of 
Indicator Reasons for variances

33

To manage 
customer and 
stakeholder 
relations

Percentage 
compliance 
with bulk supply 
agreement 
scorecard

80% 81,63%

34
Progress against 
Implementation 
Plan

N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

35 Signed contracts, 
MOUs etc. N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW N/A to MW

36

Percentage 
achievement of 
statutory reporting 
compliance

100% 100%

 

37

Percentage 
Board Members 
attendance (Board 
and Committees)

85% 94%

 

38

Percentage number 
of resolutions taken 
to total resolutions 
required

100% 100%

 

4.3 Customer and Stakeholder Interaction
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39

 To contribute 
towards 
transformations 
and 
developmental 
agenda

Number of people 
appointed on 
the internship 
programme

10 16

 

40
Number of people 
appointed on 
the learnership 
programme

NQF level 2:15 15

41 NQF level 3:15 15

42 Number of people 
employed Direct:20 31

 

43

Number of people 
appointed on 
the Graduate 
programme

4 4

 

44

Number of 
(external) Bursaries 
awarded 10 10

 

4.3 Customer and Stakeholder Interaction

# Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator Annual Target

Year to 
date Actual 
Performance

Status of 
Indicator Reasons for variances
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# Strategic 
Objectives

Key 
Performance 
Indicator

Annual 
Target

Year to 
date Actual 
Performance

Status of 
Indicator

Reasons for variances

45

To maintain 
retention 
and safety of 
employees

Percentage 
staff turnover <3% 0,98%

46

To maintain 
retention 
and safety of 
employees

Disabling 
Injury 
Frequency 
Rate

<1 1,73

The actual performance of 1.73 exceeded the target of 
1. Magalies Water had two (2) separate incidents during 
the financial year, i.e., one (1) car related occurrence 
that involved employees from two (2) Water Treatment 
Plants, and one (1) hand injury related incident. 

Magalies Water is actively engaging with all its 
employees and contractors on incident management. 
Occurrences are investigated for root cause analysis 
purposes. Incidents are also reported to EXCO on 
a monthly basis in order to ensure that assurance 
interventions are implented on time and the control 
effectiveness and/or relevance is verified. The Safety 
Health and Environmental Management (SHE) 
Department has been moved to the Operations 
Division as from the 2018/19 financial year,  in order 
to enhance SHE-oversight function and Staff visibility 
to Operations’ Staff. This creates synergy among the 
various role players

47
To contribute 
towards 
transformations 
and 
developmental 
agenda

Number of 
Corporate 
Social 
Investments 
Initiatives 
implemented

6 10

 

48

Percentage 
compliance 
with the 
Stakeholder 
engagement 
plan

80% 100%

 

The above performance information encompasses all the relevant key performance indicators, including those that Magalies Water 

had not enlisted in the 2017/18 Shareholder Compact. The perfromance indicators are included for the purposes of reflecting 

4.4  Organisational Capacity
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the completeness of the measured parameters that are of 

interest the Shareholder. They are accordingly marked as 

N/A to MW (not applicable to Magalies Water).

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT ON 
PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 
 

The Performance Information Report from the Auditor 

General of South Africa is covered under the Finance 

Division’s audited Annual Financial Statements and it 

provides for both financial and non-financial predetermined 

strategic objectives, the performance of which is reported 

for the financial year ending June 30, 2018.
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A.  GENERAL 
PERFORMANCE AND 
ASSURANCE

The Office of The Chief Executive Officer  

The Office of the Chief Executive Officer is constituted by 

the Company Secretariat, the Enterprise Risk Management, 

the Internal Audit, the Stakeholder and Customer 

Services and the Strategy Management Departments. 

The performance information of the Company Secretariat 

Department is outlined under the Board of Magalies 

Water (refer to Part A of the Report). The reporting of the 

Stakeholder and Customer Services Division is presented 

separately later. Only the highlights of the Internal Audit 

and that of the Risk Management Departments are 

outlined within this Section. 

For the two Departments, the structural arrangement 

deliberately separates the reporting lines of the Head of 

Internal Audit from that of the Risk Specialist.This is to 

avoid the possible conflict of loyalties or compromises that 

could drive the Board and its respective Committees to 

invest on external validation of internal audit’s view on risk 

management performance levels.

1.  Enterprise Risk and Internal Audit

Within the Office of the Chief Executive Officer resides 

a dedicated Risk Management function that helps to 

preserve the principles of the three  lines of defence model 

and by so doing enabling the internal audit function to 

fully provide independent assurance in the design of 

risk management processes, their application, control 

adequacy and effectiveness.

Combined Assurance Framework

A Combined Assurance Framework was developed during 

the 2016/17 financial year and the intention was to establish 

the Combined Assurance Forum, develop a matrix and 

validate assurance provided during the 2017/18 financial 

year. Magalies Water still considers that improvement 

of assurance coverage can be achieved through better 

coordination of assurance providers.  The implementation 

of the Combined Assurance Model will assist in providing 

assurance to the Audit committee and the Board that 

significant risk areas are adequately addressed and 

suitable controls exist to mitigate and reduce the impact 

of those risks. The lines of defence, such as the Board, the 

management as well as the internal and external identified 

assurance providers,  continued to embrace all assurance 

activities in a coordinated approach.  

1.1  Internal Audit

The internal audit function was outsourced until the end of 

the 2017/18 financial year. 



76 Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018

1.2  Enterprise Risk Management 

Magalies Water has a dedicated Risk Specialist who assist 

the Chief Executive Officer with regards to processes 

pertaining to business continuity, fraud and corruption and 

the related whistle-blowing, compliance management as 

well as the enterprise risk management. 

The functional roles enable Magalies Water to manage 

the enterprise-wide risk management best practices to 

assist the organisation in complying with the legislative 

requirements in line with Section 51(a)(1) and Section 

38(a)(1) of the Public Finance Management Act including 

the King IV Code on Corporate Governance.  The risk 

management responsibility is placed on the Board to 

commit to appropriate level of management of any risks 

that may adversely affect the ability of the organisation to 

meet its strategic objectives. The Board’s delegation of 

the overall risk ownership to the Chief Executive Officer 

placed risk management practices, processes and systems 

on the decisions and operational radar in order to achieve 

an appropriate balance between mitigating risks and 

realising potential opportunities. This is in planning for 

future uncertainties. 

The organisation made strides in embedding the 

organisational risk management culture in the past financial 

year. Risk management  was entrenched across the board 

to be alert, transparent and responsive to risky changes 

presented by both the internal and external operating 

environments. The approach to the risk management 

processes is on the basis of value creation and preservation. 

The organisation explicitly embraced uncertainty, made 

informed decision, and placed risk management process - 

commitment, policy and communication  as an integral part 

of all internal business strategic and operational business 

growth opportunities and continuous improvement.

The 2016/17 Enterprise Risk Management Policy  informed 

all the areas of providing assurances that the Department 

is responsible for. 

1.2.1 Business Continuity Management

During the previous financial years, Magalies Water 

committed to ensuring the continuity of its business 

operations and adopted Business Continuity Management 

(BCM) best practices. By the end of 2017/18, components 

of the BCM practices which include policy, impact 

assessment, continuity plan, and a disaster recovery plan 

had been developed and implemented. For instance, 

the Information, Communication and Technology (ICT) 

Disaster Recovery Plan was tested to determine whether 

it was working as intended in the event of business 

interruption.  Magalies Water showed resilient and effective 

recovery of its operations with minimum disruption when, 

for example, an interruption was experienced in Brits. In 

the latter case, non-employees had blocked access to the 

laboratory services premises. Additional BCM practices 

will be implemented during the 2018/19 financial year.
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1.2.2 Compliance Management 

The oversight on compliance has been assigned to the 

Risk Specialist and the 2018/19 annual performance report 

will provide details in this regard.

1.2.3 Fraud and  Corruption Cases 

In general, Magalies Water handles all suspected fraud 

and corruption cases through an independently managed 

fraud hotline. 

No fraud and corruption cases were reported for the 

2017/18 financial year  and therefore, there were no 

related disciplinary actions were necessary during the 

period under review.  

Magalies Water monitored and checked the success rate 

in combatting fraud and corruption through the Whistle 

Blower’s Report, among other mechanisms.  Only the Chief 

Executive, the Chief Audit Executive, and the Risk Specialist 

review the Whistle Blower’s Report, which is managed 

through an independent service provider anonymously. 

The outsourcing decision enabled compliance with the 

provisions of the Protected Disclosures Act (Act No. 26 of 

2000) for whistle-blower and whistle-blowing processes 

and in order to protect people who would have made such 

disclosure in good faith. 

1.2.4 Risk Management

Magalies Water adopted an enterprise-wide approach to 

risk management. Strategic and operational risks were 

identified during the financial year and reported to the Risk 

Committee. Risk Management is part of Magalies Water 

strategic performance indicators used to guard alignment 

of activities with the stakeholder’s interests.  

At management level, risk management responsibilities 

are an integral part of the day to day operational activities.  
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The risk profile of Magalies Water at the end of the 2017/18 financial year is as follows:

Risk name Risk description Residual risk 
rating

Mitigation actions

Funding constraints Inadequate financial 
reserves to implement 
capital  Projects

High The exposure of this risk changed slightly to high from 
an inherent exposure of critical.  Funding to implement 
capital projects in terms of the capital expansions 
Masterplan remains a key constraint. A service provider 
has been appointed to assist with the identification of 
capital projects and application of borrowing limits

Safety and Security Failure to provide proper 
safety and security 
measures

Moderate The risk was mitigated through the enhancement of 
security measures

Reputation Erosion of reputation Moderate The risk exposure in this instance changed from a high 
at inherent rating to a residual exposure of Moderate.  
Mitigating actions that were put in place include  
structures to effectively profile and manage relations 
with the key stakeholders.  Conversations on material 
matters of engagement with stakeholders were held to 
proactively manage reputational impacts.

Bulk water 
infrastructure 
constraints

Current bulk water 
infrastructure not meeting 
current demand  

Moderate This risk was mitigated through capacity enhancement 
of the Project Management Unit to be able to deliver 
on infrastructure upgrades.  The inherent exposure of 
this risk changed from critical to moderate. The strategic 
targets related to implementation of project delivery 
milestones were however not met.

Infrastructure 
expansion

Inadequate resources to 
provide sustainable water 
services to customers/ 
meet strategic objectives

Moderate The inherent risk exposure of this risk changed from high 
to a residual rating of moderate.  Mitigating actions put 
in place were to progressively upgrade the plants, carry 
out infrastructure expansions and minimisation of plant 
downtime through implementation of infrastructure 
redundancy plan.  This allowed for required operational 
effectiveness to enable delivery on the mandate of 
Magalies Water.  
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Risk name Risk description Residual risk 
rating

Mitigation actions

Information and 
Communication 
Technology (ICT) 
systems

 Failure to align ICT 
activities to the approved 
governance framework, 
policies and procedures

Moderate Mitigating actions that were put in place to manage 
this risk include approvals of any software, hardware 
and overall modifications to the ICT environment.  
Backups are also performed at regular intervals including 
preventative maintenance and proactive monitoring of 
ICT systems.  All the mitigating actions were successfully 
deployed and the inherent risk exposure of critical, 
changed to a residual risk rating of high.  This risk remains 
high as the disaster recovery site was commissioned 
but not yet implemented.  This may present potential 
significant impacts to the business of Magalies Water 
should ICT systems fail.

Water resources Poor quality and 
inadequate quantity of 
water resources

 Moderate Water availability is a critical component and any 
constraints to the resource could impact adversely on 
the survival of the business of Magalies Water.  This may 
ultimately have an impact on the water service delivery 
at large as raw water is a fundamental input to the supply 
chain.  Magalies Water abstracts raw water in accordance 
to the licences to minimise the impact on water resources.  
Treatment processes are optimised to enable treatment of 
the deteriorating quality of raw water.  Discussions  were 
held with the Department of Water and Sanitation about 
the deteriorating water quality.  The inherent exposure of 
this risk was critical and changed to a residual exposure of 
Moderate as a result of implementation of the mitigation 
actions as reflected above.    

Potable water quality Poor potable water quality Low Timeous implementation of action plans to optimise the 
treatment processes and chemicals utilisation mitigated 
this risk.  The inherent risk exposure changed from 
critical to Low due to optimisation interventions that led 
to potable water quality compliance to SANS 241:2015 
standards.
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Risk name Risk description Residual risk 
rating

Mitigation actions

Critical skills 
(knowledge, 
competence and 
attitude)

Inadequate systems to 
attract, develop and retain 
critical skills

Low The inherent exposure of this risk changed from high, 
to a residual exposure of low.  Mitigating actions that 
were put in place are filling the organisational structure 
with the required skills and competencies.  Individual 
development plans were also put in place to ensure 
that competencies of employees match the required 
competencies required for their positions.

2. Other Disciplinary Cases – Employee Relations

Below are non-fraud and non-corruption related misconducts, disputes and disciplinary cases that were handled through 

our Corporate Services Division that are high risk in nature as at 30 June 2018.

Employee Misconducts, Disputes and Disciplinary Cases 

Nature of Case Summary  of  Facts Status of the Case

Misconduct Employee charged with two acts of misconduct related to dishonesty The matter was 
pending

Misconduct Employee was suspended on allegations of leaking / sharing official information to the 
media without authorization was suspended. Suspension was lifted by CCMA. The date 
of the disciplinary hearing was set for 26 June 2018. 

The matter was 
pending

Dispute of unfair 
labour practice

Employee lodged a dispute of unfair labour practice with the CCMA for being excluded 
from the shortlisting process whilst not meeting minimum requirements 

The matter was 
pending
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B. ORGANISATIONAL EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS

Operations

Magalies Water’s operations are taken care of by the Chief Operations Officer who is assisted by three members of the 

Executive Committee, namely, the General Manager: Water Services, General Manager: Project Management Unit, and 

General Manager: Engineering Services. 

1.1 Water Services Division 

The Water Services mandate include implementing scientific services related functions and our state-of-the-art laboratory 

remains the flagship enabler for analytical services on potable water supplied to customers

1.2  Laboratory Services 

Until 1 July 2015, Magalies Water housed its scientific services laboratory at Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant and customer-

accessibility was, due to long distance and location, a challenge. It was then relocated to a more central place facility in 

Brits, a move that was appreciated by our customers. 

The Brits laboratory provides a wide variety and world class services to clients at the backdrop of being ISO/IEC 17025 

accredited in the field of Microbiology and Chemistry in the North West. Highly skilled staff conducts over 40 000 

analyses annually to ensure that water quality complies with the national drinking water Standards (SANS 241). Scientific 

Services is conducted in a broad range of chemical, microbiological, hydro biological and molecular biological analyses 

of environmental samples, potable and wastewater. 

The sampling and monitoring programmes are compliant to the Blue and Green Drop requirements in line with SANS 241 

or wastewater discharge requirements. 

Brits laboratory is run by twenty 24 permanent and all-black energetic professionals younger than 35 years old, who on 

gender equity are 62.5% female and 37.5% male. A world-class equipment is used and the laboratory has achieved 25 

accredited methods, comprising 19 Chemistry analytes and six for Microbiology. In addition, 19 more analytes have been 

recommended for accreditation by SANAS, i.e., 13 for Chemistry: six for Microbiology.
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Water Quality

Magalies Water sets the performance indicators for the monitoring and assessment of the quality water supplied to our 

customers in line with the South African National Standard 241-1:2015 (SANS 241:2015) specifications. Below is the actual 

achievement of compliance in terms of all the SANS-specified determinants (i.e., Acute 1, Acute 2, Chronic, Aesthetic and 

Operational) that are crucial in establishing the suitability of the quality of potable water for consumption during 2017/18.

The four water quality determinands referred to above should be understood as follows: 

•	 Acute health (both 1 and 2) refers to determinants that pose immediate unacceptable health risk if exceed specified 

contamination limits; 

•	 Aesthetic refers to determinants that taint water with respect to taste, odour or colour but do not pose any 

unacceptable health risk even if contamination specified limits are exceeded; 

•	 Chronic health refers to determinants that pose unacceptable health risk if ingested over an extended period of time 

provided their presence exceed specified at contamination limits; and 

•	 Operational refers to determinants that are essential for the assessment of the efficient operation of treatment 

systems and identification of risk to the infrastructure. 
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The above success levels are attributable to the Magalies Water laboratory’s advanced equipment in analytical services 

and which are ISO/IEC 17025 accredited in the fields of Microbiology and Chemistry. 

A continuous trend that dates back from 2013/14 can also be seen in the Graph below. The compliance achievement levels 

for the past five years including 2017/18 of implementing predetermined and continuously reviewed the key performance 

indicators per SHCs / corporate plans. The audited annual reports demonstrate uninterrupted and consistent compliance 

to these standards.  See below, the compliance levels of over five consecutive years, from 2013/14 to 2017/18. 

It must also be mentioned that, as the organisation, we continued to review our objectives and to respond to the dynamics 

of changing operating landscape, and learning new ways of doing business. Hence, the series of annual reports referenced 

in here show that in some years we have improved even the number of the key performance indicators and the degrees 

of SMART ness on how they are applied. 
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Vaalkop Plant and Distribution Performance

Below are the actual performance levels of the four (4) sections of the Vaalkop with respect to Plant and Distribution:

Vaalkop Plant Performance Achievements  

Each of the four (4) sections of Vaalkop Plant’s performance equates to excellent achievement, i.e., above 97% as shown 

below.

• Vaalkop 1: The overall average of 97.42% on water quality was achieved. 

• Vaalkop 2: The overall average of 98.52% on water quality was achieved.

• Vaalkop 3: The overall average of 99.10% on water quality was achieved. 

• Vaalkop 4: The overall average of 98.77% on water quality was achieved. 

With respect to distribution, the overall performance achieved was 99.40%. This performance level also equates excellent 

achievement, i.e. above 97% across the board.

Klipdrift Plant

The Plant achieved an overall average of 99.43% on water quality and on Distribution, an overall average of 99.06% was 

achieved.  On both cases, this performance level also equates excellent achievement, i.e. above 97%.

Cullinan Plant

The Plant achieved an overall average of 98.50% on water quality and on Distribution, an overall average of 98.05% was 

achieved.  On both cases, this performance level also equates excellent achievement, i.e. above 97%.

Wallmannsthal Plant

The Plant achieved an overall average of 96.29% on water quality and on Distribution, an overall average of 96.99% was 

achieved.  On both cases, this performance level also equates excellent achievement, i.e. above 97%. . 

Water Quality Performance Per Plant

Focus is on performance levels per Water Treatment Plant and its Distribution in relation to the SANS 241:2015.
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Water Sales Volumes

Sales volumes is our primary success factor that drives our organisational revenue. The graph below shows the accumulated 

total potable water sales volumes against the set targets or budgeted sales for the four Water Treatment Plants.
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1.3  Engineering Services and Project Management Units

Both the Project Management Unit (PMU) and Engineering Services units focused on assisting the various divisions in the 

successful completion of mainly, the CAPEX infrastructural upgrades, refurbishments, construction, monitoring, evaluation 

and quality compliance, including managing the outsourcing of parts of work that could not be executed in-house.

The PMU processes also include providing an oversight to the budgetary constraints and performance obligations and 

communication of progress and challenges to the Board. 

The Capital Expansion Masterplan provided a trajectory for the organic growth of Magalies Water through implementation 

of water services infrastructure. Expansions of infrastructure were carried out to enhance operational capacity and resilience 

in response to the increasing demand of water supply. Completed projects enhances Magalies Water’s aspirations to 

increase in the asset base and geographical reach for water services provision. 

During the 2017/2018 financial year, Magalies Water mostly implemented, self-funded projects and the following key 

projects were implemented:

Construction of the Pilanesberg Bulk Water Supply Scheme (PBWSS) commenced in August 2013 to meet the growing 

demand of water for domestic and industrial use in the Moses Kotane, Rustenburg and Thabazimbi local municipalities. 

The industrial customers who benefit 55% from the PBWSS include Platmin, Wesizwe and Maseve platinum mines. The 

domestic component jointly to benefit 45% of the scheme is made up of the Rustenburg, Thabazimbi and Moses Kotane 

local municipalities.

The following components of the PBWSS were implemented during the 2017/18 financial year:

•	 Tuschenkomst to Ruighoek Pipeline 

This project will increase the supply of water and cater for the demand of the Mabeskraal cluster. It entails construction of 

a 16 kilometre pipeline with a booster pump station from the Tuschenkomst terminal reservoir to the Ruighoek pipeline. 

The project is 98% complete, testing and commissioning is ongoing. The expected practical completion is August 2018. 

•	 Pilanesberg Bulk Water Supply Scheme Phase 3 

This project entails a bulk pipeline from Mafenya reservoir and pump-station to supply Kgetlengrivier Local Municipality 

with 19Mℓ/day. The Project is at Inception Stage. The following documents have been developed: Scoping and Inception 

Report; Technical Feasibility Report and Preliminary Design Report. The Implementation Readiness Study Report is being 

finalised with the comments received from Magalies Water.
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Zeekoegat Pipeline

This project entails extension of the Zeekoegat gravity 

main to the South African Police Services dog school. 

The project is 99% complete with projected completion 

due in July 2018 and the snag list is being addressed for 

completion and project handover. 

•	 Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant Upgrades

The Klipdrift upgrade is intended to provide for current 

and future water requirements of the Moretele, Bela Bela 

and Modimolle-Mokgophoong local municipalities. The 

Plant is being upgraded to a capacity of 42Mℓ/day and 

progress is as follows: 

- Refurbishment of civil, mechanical and electrical  

 instrumentation is 100% complete practical   

 completion was reached in December 2017; 

- Installation of mechanical works is 100%   

 complete, practical completion was reached in  

 February 2018; and

- The pumping main and pump-station   

 refurbishments at the plant are 100% complete,  

 practical completion was reached in March 2018.

•	 Moretele South Rising Main and Reservoir

The construction of this bulk pipeline will enable provision 

of water from the Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant to 

Moretele Local Municipality. Water demand of the City 

of Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality will be catered for 

through supply into the Babelegi reservoir in the Greater 

Temba-Hammanskraal area. Construction of a pipeline 

to connect Carousel View and Makapanstad from the 

Klipdrift Water Treatment Plant has already commenced. 

Implementation of this infrastructure will commence over 

a three-year period and is 15% complete.

•	 Klipvoor Bulk Water Supply Scheme

Klipvoor is a Regional Bulk Infrastructure Scheme 

constructed to address current and future water 

demand of the Moretele North area, Bela-Bela and 

Modimolle-Mokgophoong municipalities. It is expected 

that the supply will also extend to Mogalakwena Local 

Municipality due to the current mining explorations in 

the area. The project is to be implemented over a long 

term with construction of the new Water Treatment Works 

downstream the Klipvoor Dam. In the short term, bulk 

supply of water will be sourced from ground water well-

fields and the Klipdrift Water Treatment Works.  

•	 Sondela Booster Pump Station

This project entails construction of a booster pump station 

at Sondela, and a 300mm diameter pipeline to provide 

assurance of current and future water demand of the 

Modimolle-Mookgophong Local Municipality. The project 

is 99% complete with the Civil works; and 16% complete 

with the electrical/instrumentation works.

•	 Wallmannsthal High Lift Pump Station
The project entails upgrading of the high lift pump station 

at the Wallmannsthal WTW. The project is 13% complete 

and due for completion in June 2019.
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•	 Brits Water Treatment Plant Upgrades
The current poor quality of raw water from the source, 

and condition of the current infrastructure necessitated 

an upgrade from 60Mℓ/day to 80Mℓ/day. The upgrades 

comprises of among others, the following components: 

- Re-route Raw Water Pipeline; 

- New Inlet Works (Pre-Ozone); 

- Expansion of Flocculation; 

- Expansion of Clear Water Tank; and 

- Pipelines and appurtenances. The project is 74%  

 complete on the civil works

• Koster Waste Water Treatment Plant

This entails construction of a new 3 Mℓ/day Waste Water 

Treatment Works as well as the associated outfall sewers.  

The Plant is designed for an upgrade of its operational 

processes and construction of an additional clarifier 

to a capacity of 6 ML/day in the future.  The Waste 

Water Treatment System is old and the sewage is being 

pumped directly into the river without being treated.  This 

construction project seeks to eliminate that and is it 75% 

complete with the civil works, as at the end of the financial 

year 2011/18.  

• Implementation Readiness Studies

The Implementation Readiness Studies (IRS) was performed 

for some of the projects. However, financial resources 

still need to be mobilised for further implementation 

programme stages to commence. This entails construction 

of the following:  

• Bulk pipeline from La Patrie reservoir to Moruleng to 

address the increasing water demand of the Moses 

Kotane Local Municipality;

• Pipeline and pump-station between Padda junction 

and Thabazimbi to augment the current bulk supply 

to the Thabazimbi Local Municipality; 

• Gravity pipeline from La Patrie reservoir to Sandfontein 

to replace the current pipeline in order to meet the 

existing and future water demand; 

• A Pipeline that connects Padda junction to Swartklip 

to replace the currently stressed and aged pipeline; 

and 

• Another Pipeline and pump-station from Mafenya 

to Tlhabane reservoir to provide for sufficient 

capacity to meet the long - term water demand of 

the Rustenburg Local Municipality and the Royal 

Bafokeng Administration. 

Magalies Water has identified two additional Growth Plan-

linked projects on which to conduct due diligence studies 

and finalise the readiness by the end of 2018/19.
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CORPORATE SERVICES 
DIVISION
 
Magalies Water has a dedicated Corporate Services 
Division (Division) to enable a fully-fledged human capital 
management, including recruitment and placement of 
skilled workforce and/or development and upgrading of 
the existing employees. Through its Employee Relations 
Unit, this Division also maintains healthy relationships with 
the internal stakeholders (Staff) and all the engagement 
plans with the unionised labour force, among others.  
Other Units include Information, Communication and 
Technology, Human Capital Management, Legal Services, 
Records Management, Environmental and Occupational 
Health and Safety, including Wellness aspects. It is headed 
by the General Manager who is also a member of the 
Executive Committee (EXCO). 

Annually, this Division, manages compliance to the labour 
relations related legislative requirements and parts of 
compliance initiatives get incorporated into the Corporate 
Plans. This inclusion enables the organisation to achieve 
the organisational strategies pertaining to the following:- 

• The recruitment of staff, in general, and 

• The improvement of the organisation’s employment 
equity profile; 

• The training and development of Staff; 

• Compliance to safety, health and environmental 
international standard and the related certification 
(ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001), the overall employees’ 
well-being (psychologically and socio-economically)

• The retention of skilled and technical staff, among 
other aspects;

• The implementation of benchmarked employment 
best practices and policies, among others.

Linking the Division’s activities to the Section on Report 
Profile of this Annual Report (2017/18), this reporting 
period becomes the landmark for the first five (5)-year 
Corporate Plans that started in 2013/14.  We have 
established linkages of the annual performance (2017/18) 
with the prior four (4) years based on the previously 
published Annual Reports, wherever possible.

HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
 
The Manager: Human Capital Management Department 
oversees the three (3) Units, i.e., Employee Relations 
Management (ER), the Human Resources Management 
(HRM) and the Human Resources Development (HRD). 
The HRM assists the organisation on matters relating to 
remuneration and rewards, absenteeism management, 
workforce profiling, employment equity, staff turnover and 
staff retention. The HRD handles transformational projects 
(e.g., bursaries, internships, learnerships and Business 
Operations’ Initiatives including the likes of the mentoring/
coaching example presented later, on Artisans, among 
others). The management of the Employee Wellness 
Programmes (EWP) is part of the HRD. 
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Section A: Workforce Profile
 
During the 2017/2018 financial year, various Tables below depict the overall performance on staff recruitment and 
improvement of the employment equity with regard to the advancement of the designated groups (historically 
disadvantaged people with disabilities (PWDs) and women). 

For the detailed breakdown on the actual achievements of percentage Workforce Profile related Key Performance Indicator 
versus targets per category as at the end of 2017/18 financial year, refer to the Table series below.

On the number of employees, Magalies Water grew from 266 staff members as at the end of 2016/17 to 283 employees 
at the end of 2017/18 financial year. For more details, refer to the Table below.

Employment Report

Employment Group Baseline (at start of 
the Financial Year)

Total (at the end of 
the Financial Year)

Reasons / 
Comments

Top Management (Executive Com-mittee) 5 7

New 
appointments

Senior Management 11 14

Professional Qualified 13 15

Skilled technical and Academically qualified workers, Junior 
manage-ment, Supervisors, Foremen and Su-perintended

37 40

Semi-Skilled and Discretionary deci-sion Making 129 135

Unskilled and Defined decisions Mak-ing 71 72

Total Permanent 266 283

The year closed the percentage performance of gender and race as shown in the next Table. 
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Employee Report by Race and Gender

Filled Posts Per Race and Gender

Race Gender Total (Gender/Race) Variance (Total YTD) % Male Female

African
Male 148 2 52.71

Female 110 4 38.27

Indian
Male 2 0 0.72

Female 0 0 0

Coloured
Male 2 0 0.72

Female 1 0 0.36

White
Male 13 0 4.69

Female 7 0 2.53

Male & Female To-tals  283 6 100 165 118

Male & Female (%) 100% 2,17% 58,3% 41,7%

With respect to male only, related equity and targets status, is in the next Table.

Employment Equity Status - Male

Levels                                                           MALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 4 - - - - - 0 -

Senior Management 5 - 1 - 2 - - -

Professional qualified 7 - - - - - 1 -

Skilled 23 - - - - - 5 -

Semi-Skilled 61 - 1 - - - 7 -

Unskilled 48 - - - - - - -

Total 148 - 2 - 2 0 13 -
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The following Table contains a breakdown of female only employees by race and the related targets.

Employment Equity Status - Female

Levels                                                           FEMALE

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management 3 - - - - - - -

Senior Management 5 2 - - - 1 1 -

Professional qualified 6 2 0 1 - 1 1 1

Skilled 11 2 - - - 1 1 -

Semi-Skilled 61 15 1 2 - 2 4 3

Unskilled 24 4 0 2 - 1 -

Total 110 25 1 5 - 6 7 4

 
Graphically, the proportional percentage breakdown of the equity status is provided below together with the desired/ 
targeted split for the future. 
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The Table below shows that three (3) male employees had disabilities, by the end of June 2018

Disabled Employees

Levels Disabled Staff

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management - - - -

Senior Management - - - -

Professional qualified 1 - - -

Skilled - - - -

Semi-skilled 2 - - -

Unskilled - - - -

Total 3 0 0 0

In short, no specified targets were set for both genders regarding disabilities; the 2% target by race and work levels for the 
PWDs will enable Magalies Water to achieve the ratio of 55% males – to - 43% females in future.

Section B: Employee Relations Management 
 
Employee Relations oversees the implementation of the Labour Laws compliance imperatives. At the end of 2017/18 
financial year, the majority of unionised staff members belonged to either NEHAWU or SAMWU. It also handles matters of 
disputes and grievances pertaining to both the unionised and un-unionised Staff.  MMagalies Water had two (2) disciplinary 
related incidents that were concluded with final written warning actions. Refer to the Table below
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Disciplinary Actions Instituted

Nature of disciplinary action           Number

Verbal warning 0

Written warning 0

Final written warning 2

Dismissal 0

The fixed costs related to human capital overheads is shown in the Table below. In 2017/18 financial year, Magalies Water 
incurred  R65.6m on 143 direct employees and R77.2m on 140 indirect Staff costs. 

Personnel Costs by Item 

Item Total 
Expenditure 

Staff 
Expenditure 

Staff Expenses/ 
Total Expenses

Employees Average Staff 
Costs 

Measure Unit (Rm) (Rm) %age Number Rm-value

Direct employee 
costs

543,238 65,663 12,09% 143 459

Support services 77,232 14,27% 140 551

Total 543,238 142,895 26% 283 505

Staff cost by Salary Bands is tabulated below.

Personnel Costs by Salary Band

Level Staff 
Expenditure

Staff Expenditure/ Total 
Staff

Employees Average Costs Per 
Employee 

Measure Unit Rm-value % Number Rm-value

Top Management 9,749 6,82% 7 1393

Senior Management, 
Professional qualified, Skilled, 
semi-skilled and unskilled

133,146 93,18% 276 482

Total 142,895 100% 283 505
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For the budget provision for performance related rewards (2017/18 financial year), Magalies Water capped it to an average 
of 7% which will be allocated on a cascading scale to all Staff Bands. See the next Table. 

Provision for Performance Rewards

Item Performance 
Rewards 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

Performance Rewards to Total 
Personnel Costs 

Measure Unit Rm Rm %

Top Management 1,145

Senior Management 1,181

Professional qualified 0,897

Skilled, semi-skilled and unskilled 7,172 

Total 10,395 14,2895 7%

The plan is to cap the performance rewards to an average of 7% which will be allocated on a cascading scale on all Staff 
Bands.

Section C: Staff Turnover Monitoring and Management
 
The 2017/18 percentage Staff Turnover has been, as it was in the past four (4) years, less than the 3% target. Refer to the 
Graph below which shows this performance for the reporting period to be 0.98% and the lowest ratio ever achieved since 
the 2013/14 financial year Corporate Plan. 
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Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18

Section D: Additional Alignment: Ministerial Outcomes, DWS 
Strategic Goals and Water Objectives

In terms of the Ministerial Outcome 12 and Outcome 4 regarding an efficient, effective and development oriented public 
service and an empowered, fair and inclusive citizenship (NDP) and Job Creation linked to Outcome 4: Youth Accord 
(currently,  the Y-E-S (Youth Employment Service undertaking by the South African President) as well as the DWS strategic 
objective of an efficient, effective and development oriented sector leader, Magalies Water responded in its planning 
and execution through implementing its commitment to contribute towards transformation and developmental agenda 
objectives. This Annual Report of 2017/18 financial year (Report) provides our performance related achievements with 
respect to the skilled and capable workforce that is capacitated, among others.

Section E: Organisational Capacity / Job Creation Management
 
This Section provides a breakdown of some of the alignment initiatives both from an external (societies where Magalies 
Water has presence) and from an internal (own employees’ career growth pathing) perspectives. 
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Direct Jobs

During 2017/18, Magalies Water had planned to employ twenty (20) employees. This number had increased to thirty one 
(31) actual jobs at the end of the reporting period. For details refer to the Graph below.  

In the Graphic demonstration above, it can be deduced that Magalies Water had anticipated the creation of seventy one 
(71) direct jobs at the end the five (5) years starting from 2013/14. 

Indirect / Temporary Jobs

During 2017/18, Magalies Water had no indirect jobs created. All the work was executed by permanent employees and / 
or through contracting BBBEE compliant category of service providers, among others. 

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18
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Overall, as shown above, Magalies Water still managed to indirectly contract 83.41% (1101 as the cumulative actual 
compared to the cumulative figure of 1320 that was targeted) of the number that had been set on the basis of year-
on-year for the 5-year period starting from 2013/14 and ending on 30 June 2017/18. The 16.59% shortfall is from the 
let-down of the 2015/16 projects that could not take off as envisaged. This is the reason that there were no Graduates 
recruited out of the 500 planned.

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18
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HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
The Human Resources Department focuses on Career Development Initiatives.

Section F: Skills Development Programmes

The Annual Report (2017/18) presents a split of Skills Development Programmes between internal and innovative tactics 
that focused on our own employees and external youth including other people drawn from the communities that our 
customers (local municipalities) supply water to.

Magalies Water believes in the development and retention of the right skills in-order to deliver on its mandate and for the 
benefit of the country at large.

Inward Looking: Magalies Water’s 7-S Framework in Action

In order to assist employees to develop and acquire the necessary qualifications, thereby improving their prospects of 
mobility and improvement of their quality of life, staff is developed according to their Individual Development Plans. 

Internal Bursaries 

Through our entrenched Bursary Programme, a total of 24 employees were awarded bursaries to pursue studies at various 
institutions of learning during the reporting period.   

Other Ways: Building Our Capacity from Within / Divisional Lowest Skilled Staff 

Other avenues explored included Area Management Teams coaching general worker-category Staff towards becoming 
Artisans over the past five years (2013/14 to 2017/18).

Inspiring Successes: ‘Straight Cut and Smooth Sailing’

In addition to the Internal Bursaries, Magalies Water had other great initiatives going for the upskilling of our staff members, 
and during 2017/18. Water Services Division was our pioneer in terms of the ground-breaking innovative initiatives in this 
regard. Our internal Staff stands good chances of career growth and their confidence in applying for higher positions is 
backed up by tangible or improved competencies.  Through internal mentoring and coaching and over the past three (3) 
years of this 5-Year Corporate Plan (2013/14 to 2017/18), this Division embarked on a hands-on empowerment project 
aimed at our lowest level employees. The results we are consolidating during 2017/18 shows the latter category having 
been put through the Trade Test accreditation processes.
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Inspiring Challenges: Success is ALWAYS the Other Side of Failure

Magalies Water had some teething problems since 2010, when the first trial on this internal staff growth path initiative 
through the Career Ladders Programme started with two (2) willing colleagues from the Mechanical Section. Two (2) years 
later, we had one (1) more newly qualified Maintenance Fitter while the second one could not complete the Programme 
due to other competing commitments. The successful incumbent was later appointed at Vaalkop Water Treatment Plant 
and soon afterwards, found personal growth opportunity at Rand Water. This assured us that we did the right thing and 
it is positive news for our country. Upon realising that, generally, the Mechanical Section experiences high staff turnover 
and it was difficult for us to monitor and measure the internal impact of the effort, we revised the strategy and the pilot 
programme was shifted to the Electrical team whereby the Sectional Head, Mr Mogapinyane (3rd in the Photo 1 from left 
to right below) took the initiative to heart and ran with it and the rest is history.

The highlights of the successful initiatives include capacity enhancement that had been linked to the N3 and N6 Candidates 
for Electrical Engineering as outlined below.

From Left to Right: Samuel Nthunya, from General Workers to Area East Technical Assistant (Feb 2018 test year); 2. 
Matthews Boikanyo, from General Worker to Technical Assistant and now a fully-fledged Electrician at Klipdrift Plant (Jan 
2017 test year); 3. Thuso Mogapinyane, Electrical Sectional Head: our in-house Mentor and Coach who we hold in high 
regard for being willing to share his expertise. 4.  Selephi Malobola (Not in the Picture), Electrician at Vaalkop (Jan 2013 
test year); and 5. James Kabe (Not in the Picture), Call Center Operator (June 2018 test year).

“It really excites us all that our 
company could display such 
caring attitude towards our 
lowest placed employees”. 

These are profound words from 
the Area East Asset Manager,  

Mr William Sithole, who 
oversees and provides the 
overall support towards the 
success of these initiatives.”
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N3 Electrical Tradesmen Accreditation: Internal Coaching / Mentoring

The pilot project started in Area East (Klipdrift and Cullinan Plants) where General Workers were encouraged to grab the 
opportunity to covert to artisanship by enrolling for Courses with the TVET Colleges. To-date, we have three (3) additional 
qualified Electricians as we close the curtain for the 2017/18 financial year. The electricians have been awarded Trade 
Certificates already by the Department of Higher Education.

Of the accredited Tradesmen, one (1) has been appointed as an Electrician in our Klipdrift Plant. The other one (1) was 
appointed as a Technical Assistant. This provides him with further on-the-job exposure. These two (2) are valuable (human) 
assets to the company beyond their immediate jobs. They also service all three Area East Plants when standby needs 
arise. The other artisan is still at the lowest level (Call Center Operator) due to the unavailability of posts, currently.

N6 Accreditation: Internal Coaching / Mentoring

Magalies Water prides itself with three (3) N6 certified Electrical Assistants as at the end of the 2017/18 financial year. The 
robust plan during 2018/19 is to prepare them for the Trade Tests.

This Programme, up to the end of the 2017/18 financial year has been received well by our colleagues to the extent that 
a year after we had started it, some of them had already progressed to the N3 level. At that point, Senior Staff and other 
Colleagues could provide the latter Group with a Structured Training Programme to prepare for the Trade Test process.

Forward Looking: Internal Capacity Overlapping Initiatives 2017/18 and 2018/19 

The success of the Electrical Training Programme has been an inspiration to Magalies Water staff at all levels. As a result, 
we have budgeted for a proper Workshop to be built in Wallmannsthal (subject to Magalies Water’s affordability) to cater 
for the expansion of the Programme to include both Mechanical and Civil apprenticeship/ artisanship. Candidates have 
already been identified for the period from 2018/19 financial year onwards.

The organisation is pleased with the outcomes and ability to overcome the challenges. This Programme is deliberately 
designed to focus on our internal employees, as external candidates benefit through Internships, Learnerships, Graduate 
Programmes, as well as External Bursaries.

Magalies Water takes pride in the achievement attained.

Outward Looking: Contributing to Youth Accord / Outcome 4 / Y-E-S Programme…

During 2017/18, the following skills development initiatives were targeted and all the indicators were either met or 
exceeded, for the following;
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• Internships

• Learnerships

• External bursaries

• Engineering Graduates Capacity Building Programme

Internships
 
A target of ten (10) Interns for the 2017/18 financial year was exceeded and the organization closed the year with sixteen 
(16). The Table below shows the business functional areas where candidates were placed.

Internships Allocation by Department

Department Number

Supply Chain Management 3

Human Resources 2

Strategy Management / Performance Monitoring and Evaluation 1

Laboratory: Micro Biology 1

Laboratory: Analytical Chemistry 1

Stakeholder and Communications 1

Water Quality 1

Records Management 1

ICT 1

GIS 1

Research and Development 1

SHE 2

The Internship Programme is in line with the legislative imperative of the Skills Development Act, 1997(Act No 97 of 1998) 
that states that every employer should use the workplace as an active learning environment.

The graphical representation of the consolidated number of candidates over the past five (5) years relative to 2017/18 
performance, is presented below. In short, a cumulated total of 46 exceeded the cumulated target of 40 candidates for 
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the five year period as we take a look at our first five (5) year corporate planning cycle that we have been rolling out.

Magalies Water has provided the unemployed Graduates and potential entrants to the labour market with the much 
needed opportunities to apply their acquired skills and gain work experience.

Learnership
 
Magalies Water has, over the years, been implementing the Learnership Programme through the Vaalkop Water Treatment 
Plant under the guidance of our Senior Process Controllers. Once certified by the Energy and Water Sector Training 
Authority (EWSETA), the Learnership Candidates got accredited with an NQF Level 2 and NQF Level 3 qualifications, 

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18
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respectively. The qualifications enable the Learners to find suitable job opportunities in the water sector.

The achievements shown below are in line with the legislative Skills Development Act, 1997(Act No 97 of 1998) that  
requires Employers to use the workplace to provide opportunities for new entrants to the labour market to gain work 
experience and / or to employ persons who find it difficult to find jobs, whenever it is practical to do so.

For the 2017/18 financial year, a total of 30 participants were supported for exposure through our Water Treatment and 
Process Controls. Fifteen (15) were internal employees and another 15 being unemployed youths drawn or recruited from 
the community. The Graphic representation below is for the achievement of the target of thirty (30) employees who were 
placed on the Learniship Programme for the 2017/18 financial year.

Achieving the targets of the Learnership Programme has been consistent over the five year cycle ending 2017/18 except 
for the 2015/16 financial year where the plan was to pace the majority in the infrastructure projects that did not materialise. 
The impact is the 85,71% achieved (180 actual versus 210 we would have pushed through by the end of the  5th year 
(2017/18) since initial corporate planning approach started in 2013/14 financial year.

Graduates Capacity Building Programme (Engineering)

During the 2017/18 financial year, four (4) Graduates were placed on the active learning in accordance with the 
annual target aimed at exposing the youth to the practical engineering work experience and in order to address the 
scarce and critical skills in the water sector. The graph below shows the challenge of linking this Graduate Programme 

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18
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to the capital expansions Programmes. Had all the Magalies Water plans fallen into place over the past 5-years 
of our first Corporate Plan and had it not have been for the effect of Projects that rolled over to 2015/16, Magalies 
Water would not have achieved 66,67% that arises from deviation from its target (27) vs the actual (18) Graduates).

A further breakdown and details of the Graduate fields of study are provided in the Table below. These Graduates 
have been placed for the construction of the Brits Water Treatment Plant, and they will complete their study cycle of 
capacitation at the end of the 2018 financial year.

Graduate Streams

Engineering discipline Number

Civil 2

Electrical 1

Mechanical 1

The above engineering Graduate participants are coached and mentored through Magalies Water’s already qualified 
skilled professionals in their respective fields.

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18
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External Bursaries
 
Magalies Water also believes in increasing the levels of investment in education and training for the broader South African 
if not the world labour market through social responsibility mandate where bursaries are offered to students to further 
their studies at tertiary level (ORBIT TVET College). During the course of 2017/18 financial year ten (10) students who had 
been recruited in 2014/15 completed their Programmes. Refer to the Graph below for illustration of the achieved targets 
since 2013/14.

By the end of Quarter 2017/18, ten (10) new students were recruited to pursue their full study cycle in the Electrical and 
Mechanical Engineering fields. These learners are expected to complete their N6 studies and, as it has been observed in 
the past, they are anticipated to also apply for further development support within Magalies Water.

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18
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SAFETY HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT

At the end of 2017/18 financial year, Magalies Water had started developing safe working and records management 
procedures in line with the ISO 45001:2018 Management System (previously known as OHSAS 18001:2015 [Occupational 
Health and Safety Management System]). The plan is to have this System certified during the 2018/2019 financial year.

Safety Management: Disabling Injury Frequency Rate

The Disabling Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR) is utilised as a proxy indicator to assess the extent of safety in the workplace. 

The 2017/18 DIFR of 1.73 against the of target of ≤, the worst ever recorded in the past five (5) years, was due to 
production time losses from two (2) separate incidents that took place in Quarter 3 and Quarter 4, respectively. The closest 
was last seen in 2013/14 when DIFR of 1.70 was registered due to three (3) minor injuries. Refer to graphic demonstration 
below.

Sources: Publicised Magalies Water Annual Reports: 2013/14; 2014/15;  2015/16;  2016/17 &  2017/18
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The organisation appreciates the fact that there were no on-duty fatalities during the financial year performance under 
review.

As a way forward, and in response to the above challenge with an end goal of getting back to the 2014/15’s zero (DIFR= 
0), the reporting lines of SHE (Safety, Health and Environment) have been shifted from Corporate Services Division to 
operations, i.e., Water Services Division.  Also, every month, all incidents are escalated to EXCO, among other initiatives.  
The organisation has commission a safety management study that will include looking at complimentary mechanisms to 
measure safety performance.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
 
During 2017/18, a number of initiatives that were informed by the Environmental Management Implementation Plan were 
rolled out as outlined below. 

Enhancements to the ISO 14001:2015 Management Systems

By the end of 2017/18 financial year, Magalies Water had completed System Readiness conversion of the Environmental 
Management System (EMS or ISO 14001) enhancement in line with the revised Standard. Magalies Water had already 
been certified based on ISO 14001:2004 until we started reviewing it to be in line with the revised ISO 14001:2015 EMS.

During the last Quarter of 2017/18, Surveillance Audit of the revised ISO 14001 Systems was conducted.  The achieved 
milestones in this regard enables Magalies Water to meet the terms of the revised Standard which sets the due date for 
conversions by all the organisations that are certified on the basis of the ISO 14001:2015, to September 2018.

Prudent Initiatives: Environmental Impact Efforts

Other initiatives that demonstrate our commitment to the principles of the international best practices that are inherent in 
ISO 14001 EMS included the following”.

Eradication of Alien Plant Species

Magalies Water understands that landowners are legally responsible for the control of invasive alien plants on their 
properties (Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, 1983). As a result, during 2017/18, alien invasive plants survey 
on Magalies Water’s premises was conducted and the method of removal of each identified species was documented.  
Subsequently, Magalies Water appointed a specialist-service provider to remove the identified species from all four (4) 
Plants. Vaalkop and Cullinan will be completed with the 2018/2019 budget. 
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Green Energy Pilot Project. 

The Green Energy Pilot Project was completed in June 2018, at a cost of about R250 000. The Cullinan offices, lighting 
and security cameras are low energy consumption applications that have been migrated from the main Eskom grid to 
small solar renewable energy plants. Also, Plant operations applications that consume most power have been targeted 
as well. 

During 2018/19, focus will be on monitoring gains or savings experienced on electricity account relative to previous years, 
and we will report accordingly and re-calculate, realistically, the payback period.

For now, Magalies Water pride itself for saving the planet by achieving ‘greener energy options’ and would continue to 
test and compare options and implement the most plausible scenarios, over time.

Asbestos Phase-Out Programme

Asbestos is border line initiative between human health risks management and human safety hazards management as well 
as the overarching safety and health of natural environment.

Hence during 2017/18, Magalies Water developed a 4-Phased Asbestos Removal Programme that has been implemented 
up to Phase 3 so far. The intention is to enhance compliance to the Bill of Rights, Chapter of the Constitution regarding 
ensuring a healthy natural- and people-environments; we respond to the Asbestos Regulations of the Occupational 
Health and Safety Act (Act 85 of 1993) as well. 

In the 2018/2019 financial year, focus will be on Phase 4 of the Asbestos Removal Plan, i.e., the rehabilitation of the 
storage sites. 

Carbon Footprint

Although not much movement was made in measuring Magalies Water’s intensions on this initiative, i.e., to compute, 
assess and record our carbon footprint, during the 2017/18 financial year plan execution the Carbon Footprint monitoring 
intentions remain part of the standing commitments to contribute to a low carbon economy and reduction of the 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions. The aspirations (see Table below) are in support our Government’s mitigation and adaptation 
strategies to long-term effects of climate change.  The results are intended for comparability with baseline below.

Computation of the Greenhouse Gas emissions Baseline 

Aspect Total Kg Co2e

Water 24 528 070

Energy Consumption 82 802 911

Travel 1 522 408

Total 108 853 390
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EMPLOYEE WELLNESS PROGRAMME
 
Magalies Water has an integrated approach to health and wellness promotion. Wellness includes a combination of 
the use of health risk assessment (“HRA”) and provision of an Employee Wellness Programme (EWP) services. EWP 
information sessions focus on health and wellness, raising awareness about potential health risks, and encourage / advise 
on behavioural changes. It is available to all employees and their families on a 24 hour basis and it is rolled out through 
private (CAREWAYS) professional service provider’s specialised staff who keep the details of the engagements confidential 
all the time. 

The HRA is a screening tool to assess the functionality of individual’s health status and to guide our company towards 
identifying the best suitable EWP support for each case.

A detailed breakdown of the two (2) approaches / options can be outlined as follows:

 
Monitoring and Evaluation of the Health and Employee Wellness Programme

CAREWAYS is an intermediate, independent external service provider that administer and manage the EWP. For both 
HRA and EWP, each year, Magalies Water is furnished with the EWP status Annual Report the extracts of which become 
inputs to the overall financial year performance. The 2017/18 Annual Report is no exception to that rule as the next 
Session focuses on the EWP and later, it will be the HRA rollout for the financial year reporting period.

 
Employee Wellness Programme – 2017/18 Success Rate

Magalies Water rolls out its EWP from a multi-pronged design perspective. For example, access to its services takes any 
form of or a combination of the following:

• Face-to-face counselling (self-referral or managerial referrals);

• Legal and / or financial telephone counselling;

• Group trauma intervention, among others.

During 2017/18 financial year, the EWP utilisation rate stood at 13.42% of our total staff, a more than satisfactory 
performance level when benchmarked with other government institutions (with an average rate of 12% utilisation). See 
the Graph below.
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The Further breakdown of the forty seven (47) that made up the 13.42% referred is presented in the Table below. 

Detailed Breakdown on Access to EWP Services 2017/18

Service Type
Magalies Water Govt Sector / 

BenchmarkNo. of Cases % of Cases

Face-to-Face Counselling 24 51.06%% 38.98%

Legal and Financial 5 10.65% 12.7 %

Group Trauma Intervention 17 36.17% 2.80%

Telephone Counselling 1 2.12% 5.70%

Total 47 100.00%  

INFORMATION, COMMUNICATION AND TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT

Magalies Water, through its dedicated staff who are Specialists in the Information and Communication Technology (ICT), 
maintained the ICT infrastructural systems. The ICT Department monitors and measures the business enabling tool in terms 
of, among others, Systems availability; the availability achieved was at 98.76% or 3.76% above the target of 95%. Measures to 
address the emerging cybersecurity risks and threats in the environment included Internet Protocol (IP)-based Closed Circuit 
Television (CCTV) Camera Systems were rollout to all Water Treatment Plants. The CCTV Systems are used in conjunction with 
physical and operational security measures for protecting our employees and organisation’s property. Both the Dashboard 
Reporting Tool that is integrated with Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) was developed and Android and iOS 
based Mobile APP Tool built with Survey123 for ArcGIS were developed and tested for implementation in the next financial year 
cycle. The APP collects maintenance related field work data and post it to ArcGIS Server for analysis by non-GIS professionals. 

In short, Corporate Services Division is our business enabling value add that balances technology and human capital inputs 
towards ensuring effective and efficient business operations.
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STAKEHOLDER AND CUSTOMER SERVICES DIVISION

Magalies Water’s core business operations revolves around good relationship with our stakeholder in order to successfully 
deliver on the Mandate.  Hence  the  establishment of  a dedicated Stakeholder and Customer Service division  - that is 
headed by the General Manager who is also a member of the Executive Committee (EXCO).

This division comprised of two focus areas, which are the Stakeholder and Communication, and the Stakeholder 
Engagement- departments. These departments are crucial in establishing the needs or expectations of the services’ and/
or products’ to customers and End-Users, while also  tailor-making the promised unique selling points to the relevant 
stakeholders. Later in this Report, a brief overview of the activities for the 2017/18 financial year are highlighted for each 
focal area of the division.

The division’s programmes are based on an integrated stakeholder and communications master plan that connects 
Magalies Water strategy to the divisional mission. This is the division that takes into account the increasingly sophisticated 
customer and stakeholder base demands and ensures timeous and accurate transmission of corporate information to 
stakeholders with an established affinity and connection with Magalies Water. 

Magalies Water’s value propositions, as set out in the table below, form basis of the stakeholder groupings and are crafted 

in line with the organisational vision, mission and strategic direction.
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REGULATORY STATUTORY STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholder Stakeholder Interests / 
Expectations

MW Value Proposition Level of 
Responsibility

National Parliamentary 
Portfolio Committee – 
Water and Sanitation; 

National Assembly; 

National DWS: Accounting 
Authority / Shareholder 
Minister…

Hold National Bulk Water and 
Sanitation Policy, power to 
influence Strategy/ Strategic 
(expansion) Infrastructure Plans 
(SIP), tariffs, strategic direction 
/ performance objectives, 
appraisals, strategic business risks 
interventions …

Contribution to development and 
implementation of the Bulk Water 
and Sanitation supply policies, 
compliance, governance, business 
planning cycles, performance 
monitoring / evaluation /
reporting…

Board Chairperson, 
Accounting Officer/
CEO

National Treasury Support, appraisals, decision-
making, applications’ approvals…

Compliance - Corporate 
Plans / Strategy, governance 
risk, deviations, performance 
monitoring, information 
accuracy…

CFO and CEO

National AGSA - Auditor 
General South Africa …

Compliance and Assurance: 
Auditing, support, appraisals …

Compliance - Corporate 
Plans / Strategy, governance 
risk, deviations, performance 
monitoring, information 
accuracy…

Accounting Authority, 
Board Chairperson, 
Accounting Officer/
CEO, Exco

Provincial Government 
(2-Tier Engagement: 
Premiers’ Office and Local 
Governments)…

Relationship building, planning / 
strategy direction, governance, 
performance monitoring …

Alignment - Strategic Plans, 
lobbying, collaboration…

CEO, COO, GM: 
Stakeholder & 
Customer Services; 
EXCO...
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Parliamentary Portfolio 
Committee – Water and 
Sanitation;

Provincial Government 
& Local Government 
(expansion) Developmental 
Plans vs MW Bulk Water 
Supply provision / Capacity 
Growth Plans…

Strategic (expansion) 
Infrastructure Plans (SIP), 
governance risk mitigations, 
performance reporting…

Integration of Strategic growth 
/ expansion Infrastructure Plans 
(SIP), lobbying, support, influence, 
feedback…

Board Chairperson, 
CEO, COO, GM:  
Stakeholder & 
Customer Services…

South Africa Local 
Government Association  
(SALGA)

Compliance inputs to Corporate 
Plans, governance risks, Tariffs, 
performance evaluation, 
monitoring, reporting…

Consultation for co-determination, 
lobbying, cooperation, 
alignment…

CFO, GM: Stakeholder 
& Customer Services, 
EXCO

Customers - Local 
Government (MW provides 
services / supplies water to) 
- District Municipalities: City 
of Tshwane, Bojanala and 
Waterberg; NW Traditional 
Authorities; Mining Houses; 
Industry…

Legal compliance, 
creditworthiness, long term 
integrated plans, decisions 
influence, long term Bulk 
Supply Agreements, strategy 
performance monitoring and 
evaluation, tariffs, governance 
risk, mutual beneficial 
opportunities and interventions 
…

Quality water, dependable / 
reliable supply, affordable tariffs, 
turnaround times, responsiveness, 
engagements / consultation, 
mutual trust, long term integrated 
expansion plans / regionalised 
water solutions, partnerships 
opportunities …

CEO, CFO, COO, 
GM: Stakeholder and 
Customer Services; 
EXCO

Service Providers - 
Suppliers (who provide 
services to MW)

Oversight - legal compliance, fair 
trade conditions, ethical conduct, 
dependability, trustworthy, 
productivity, quality products and 
services, loyalty, responsiveness, 
professional competence…

Quality products and services, 
effective governance, enabling 
turnaround times, ethical conduct, 
sound business practises,  
productivity, fairness, transparency 
policies…

CFO, COO, GM: 
Stakeholder & 
Customer Services, 
GM: Project 
Management Unit / 
Engineering Services; 
GM: Water Services …

Stakeholder Stakeholder Interests / 
Expectations

MW Value Proposition Level of 
Responsibility
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INTERNAL CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholder Stakeholder Interests / 
Expectations

MW Value Proposition Level of Responsibility

Employees (All) Going Concern - sustainable and 
viable MW; 

Compliant Policies, Reputation and 
Brand Recognition, communication, 
governance…

Corporate Image, Brand 
Ambassadors, values driven 
and cultural behaviours

Board, Employer/EXCO

Organized Labour 
(SAMWU and NEHAWU).

Consultation, fair labour practises 
/ service conditions, compliance, 
strategic planning, governance, 
ethical conduct…

Sound relations, fair labour 
practises, buy-in and support, 
employment / working 
conditions, compliance … 

Board, CEO, GM: 
Corporate Services / 
EXCO

Internal Audit Enabled proactive assurance, 
information accuracy, compliance to 
legal regulatory universe, compliance, 
influence, governance support…

Performance Information 
accuracy, compliant 
implementation of legal 
regulatory principles, …

Accounting Officer / 
CEO, Audit Committee 
Chairperson, Chief Audit 
Executive, EXCO

Creditors / Investors (Dev. 
savvy Finance Institutions, 
Private Banks); DWS 
Water Trading Entity…

Risks and Opportunities partnerships, 
sound governance and performance; 

Grant Funding, Directives and 
support…

Investment opportunities, 
strong balance sheet, 
expansion growth, partnerships 
programmes, debtors 
resolutions, implementing 
agency support… 

CFO, CEO; EXCO

National DWS 
organised Water Utilities 
Communicator’s Forum 
(Other)

Professional associations, 
developments, trends, alignment and 
benchmarking

Integrated / compliance 
communications programmes, 
Corporate Brand positioning

Stakeholder and 
Communications Manager
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Provincial 
Communications Lekgotla

Professional associations, 
developments, trends, alignment and 
benchmarking

Integrated / compliance 
communications programmes, 
Corporate Brand positioning

Stakeholder and 
Communications Manager

State Owned Entities 
Communicators 
Association (SOECA) 
(Other)

Professional associations, 
developments, trends, alignment and 
benchmarking

Integrated / compliance 
communications programmes, 
Corporate Brand positioning

Stakeholder and 
Communications Manager

Government Delegations 
(All-Tiers) (Other)

Consultative (Ward Committees) 
engagement on concerns, problems, 
and communities needs relative to 
MW strategic direction 

Plant specific presentation 
/ engagement on plans, 
alignment tours with 
community structures, brand 
positioning

Stakeholder and 
Communications 
Manager, EXCO

Water Sector Events 
/ Commemorations: 
Exchanges - Participants / 
Organisers (Other)

Sharing of knowledge, best practice 
approaches, benchmarking / 
modelling…partnerships (e.g. 
planning and coordination of 
Afriwater, National Water Week, 
International Industry Conferences & 
Exhibitions (Stockholm World Water 
Week of 2017/18), World Aids Day, 16 
Days Of Activism Against Women and 
Children…

Best practice exchanges, 
sharing of plans and calendar 
of events for customer 
care and public relations 
building / engagement and 
consultation… 

Board, EXCO, 
Stakeholder and 
Communications 
Manager,

Stakeholder Stakeholder Interests / 
Expectations

MW Value Proposition Level of Responsibility
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The two sections below provides a high level view of 
the functions and activities of the department within the 
Stakeholder and Customer division for the period under 
review. 

STAKEHOLDER AND 
COMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT

The Stakeholder and Communication department works to 
ensure the continued existence of the sound stakeholder 
relations management on the basis of a well formulated 
and managed marketing and communication strategy. The 
approach is always about enhancing public awareness. 
The organisation draws its internal stakeholder from the 
public and the staff constitutes a critical assets for service 
delivery as well as the promotion of services and products 
rendered. Magalies Water’s positive perception and good 
reputation are actively entrenched as part of a variety of 
elements marketed to the stakeholders on how we would 
like them to appreciate our existence. Other proactive 
initiatives relate to internal responsiveness in order to 
improve our customer / stakeholder relationships. 

Central to the above-mentioned functional mandate of 
the department is the coordination of all initiatives behind 
the Magalies Water corporate plan’s intensive strategic 
choices, i.e., market development strategies, product 
development strategies, and market penetration strategies 
including growth / expansion strategy programmes. In 
this instance, the function supports a number of strategic 
objectives towards achieving the goals of the overall 
business strategy, among which are to position: 

•	 Corporate brand identity within the water services 
marketplace; 

•	 Water vision of “to be an industry leader in South 
Africa” and as an “employer of choice” through the 
Brand Ambassador Campaign; 

•	 Consultatively with and listen to the public and take 
account of 

       - people’s interests and concerns in the  
 design of the marketing and    
 communications support priorities,    
 developing policies, and planning    
 campaigns, exhibitions, programmes   
 and other internal inter-divisional services.

       -  marketing communication using  various   
 mediums of advertising; 

       -  building media relations; 

       -  communication facilitated research on   
 customer service related issues;

•	 Facilitate or foster alliances and lobby for external 
and internal support of customer and stakeholder-
driven organisational activities; 

•	 Itself as an effective and dependable technical 
communication support. This entails the photography, 
speech writing, video production, oversight to the 
brand during the compilation of annual reports, 
reviewing the design and manage the organisation’s 
intranet and externally focused website; 
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•	 Streamline and guide  the coverage and delivery of 
the Corporate Social Investment programmes; and

•	 Foster a culture of inclusivity for internal stakeholders 
to be proud of and / or display appropriate corporate 
image, live the existing values and desired culture 
behaviours, be it through dress codes and/or work 
ethics, among others. 

Marketing Communication 

 
Magalies Water adopts a mixed-matrix for its marketing 
related communication messages, i.e., print media, 
electronic media, brand awareness campaigns, business-
to-business marketing communication where we assist 
(e.g. for mutual benefits retention) the existing customer 
base and for ensuring that stakeholder relationships remain 
healthy. As a result, we held on all our customers for the 
year ended 30 June 2018 while efforts continue to expand 
the customer base through infrastructure capital projects. 
Other typical examples are that we ensure that our assets, 
e.g., vehicles bear the brand everywhere we drive, and we 
continue to enhance the process with materials utilised 
during exhibitions/shows, conferences, public relations 
campaigns. These are in line with the existing corporate 
identity manual.

Media Relations  
 
Magalies Water always strive to maintain an ‘open-door’ 
type of relationship with all media houses and systems 
it conducts business with. We remain steadfast with our 

intent to communicate the organisation’s goals, ideas, 
strategic intentions, as well as newsworthy events with 
representatives of any form of media, be with internal staff, 
local, regional, provincial, national and even international 
level. In our mix, we also capitalise on radio channels to 
extend our corporate brand to the end-users’ indoor 
spaces and to communicate directly with our customers 
and stakeholder. The stakeholder and communication 
departmental continuously reviews the matrix to explore 
other mediums and how to enhance our current approach. 

In short, the above key focus areas are inherent to the 
stakeholder and communication master plan and refer to: 

•	 Internal staff engagement (corporate image and Brand 
Ambassador Campaigns);

•	 External communication by means of brand 
positioning) to current and/or potential and new 
customers (business development stakeholders).

The plan itself is derived from the stakeholder and 
communication strategy that mirrors the aspirations of the 
Magalies Water five-year corporate plans and the annual 
shareholder compact contracted with the Minister of 
Water and Sanitation. We take the spirit of these guiding 
documents into account during the embedding of the the 
organisational brand as we communicate them to both 
external and internal stakeholders. 

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT DEPARTMENT: 
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MAGALIES WATER
 
The Stakeholder Engagement department (rolls its functional support through two customer-centric and customers facing 
‘contact’ points, which comprise the call centre and business development. The department enables the organisation to 
understand the stakeholder’s expectations and forms part of customised material engagement issues which are in line 
with the groupings and classification. It is instrumental in stakeholder classification / segmentation to allow Magalies 
Water to select appropriate objectives and messaging easily, and in the setting of contact time frames and analysis of 
feedback, such as the stakeholder perception surveys conducted regularly in a transparent and consistent manner.  

In executing its mandate, Magalies Water pays a particular attention to Section 29 key and core to the business customers 
and stakeholders who are listed in the Table below, based on the signed bulk supply agreements’ principle arrangements. 
Other non-core stakeholders that are still significant in their own right are engaged on an as-and-when basis. 

Agreements Concluded with the Municipalities

Name of Customer Memorandum of Agreement Expiry

Bela Bela Local Municipality 2018

CoT Metropolitan Municipality 2018

Modimolle - Mookgopong Local Municipality 2018

Moses Kotane Local Municipality 2023

Rand Water (Vaalkop Southern Water Supply Scheme) Open ended

Royal Bafokeng Administration 2021

Rustenburg Local Municipality 2018

Thabazimbi Local Municipality 2019

 
Perception Management 
 
During 2017/18, the stakeholder perception survey was conducted by an independent research company that afforded 
us an opportunity to investigate the prevailing levels of customer satisfaction with our services, looking for areas of 
concerns and improvement alike. The design of the questioning lines was in relation to Magalies Water’s strategic 
objective of customer and stakeholders interactions. The results have been and still are utilised to understand our end-
user and consumer needs and expectations and to formulate comprehensive response to media and communication 
activities, working in conjunction with the Stakeholder and Communications department. The survey was entirely linked 
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to the service level agreement performance scorecard 
indicators contained in the bulk supply agreements), as 
it is always the case as and when it they are rolled out. In 
specific terms, the survey covered: 

• Water service delivery, 

• Operational efficiency, 

• Water quality, 

• Infrastructure 

• Investment

• Financial and Commercial Viability,

• Governance and Regulatory compliance.

The stakeholder categories targeted (interviewees) were  

• Statutory – DWS - non-billing, 
• Strategic – Dikgosi, Councillors, Tribal authorities- 

Non-billing, 
• Commercial: Mines, industrial – billing,
• Domestic – billing, 
• Municipal Customers – Billing. These demanded 

attention on access, quality, quantity, reliability, 
relationship with account advisor and regular and 
timely communication,

• Government Institutions – Billing, and 
• Suppliers – Non-billing.

Statistical analyses using various customer service 
indicators, established that, overall stakeholder 
satisfaction index increased from 64.03% in 2011 to 
80% in 2018, an encouraging high levels of customer 
satisfaction increase of about 16% up to the year under 

review. We must mention that this was a fortification of our 
stakeholder engagement plan that guide Magalies Water’s 
quarterly  Board and EXCO meetings aimed at getting 
an appreciation of the various perceptions that could 
adversely affect our brand reputation if not prioritised and 
managed effectively.

Feedback on these surveys has been continuously been 
shared with EXCO and other relevant sections of various 
divisions, and identified issues are being addressed on an 

ongoing basis.

 

Magalies Water: Corporate Social 
Investment 2017/18
 
In our  support to national, provincial and, especially, local 
municipalities local within our areas of operation in terms 
of addressing water and sanitation backlogs – all in pursuit 
of the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs), Magalies 
Water follow a stringent well-thought in-house corporate 
social investment (CSI) framework to select project areas 
and we do this in a consultative approach and nature. 
The methodology include intense scrutiny where we 
interact with the Councillors of each of the six beneficiary 
municipalities, who, in turn, provide lists of requirements 
per the local municipality. Prioritised according to the 
available funds, during 2017/18, Magalies Water spent R3 
109 523 on CSI and focus was on initiatives that were about 
the integration of innovative and creative value-adding 
solutions to economical, societal and environmental 
challenges. These challenges take a centre stage and 
consideration during decision-making processes on who 
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to select for the limited benefits and we also consider the 
previous years’ beneficiaries, as we facilitate sponsorships 
during stakeholder engagements. 

In some cases, as it was the case in 201718, the nature and 
amount of work to be done would require collaboration 
with contractors and this exercise is biased towards locally-
based service providers who are, again, nominated by the 
municipalities and the capabilities of which are screened 
by Magalies Water.

Challenges: Lessons Learnt from the 
Corporate Social Investment 2017/18

Our planning and scheduling of the CSI initiatives was 
based on the assumption that the working capital would 
be raised seamlessly towards the execution of the projects. 
However, this was not the case as we experienced a delay 
in the delivery of the programmes quarterly as planned 
until quarter 4 due to the challenges relating to:

•	 The developing contractors project capacities, 

•	 The factor of multiple local municipalities with 
administrators’ consultations,

•	 Programmes’ monitoring and evaluation, which 
although the Project Managers’ made several site 
inspections to ensure minimum acceptable quality of 
works are met,  this proved insufficient and it felt the 
best would have been the staging of an on-site full 
time supervision from neither Magalies Water nor the 
Local Municipalities concerned, themselves

•	 Fixed budget allocation (MW) versus the factor of 
protracted execution time pre-processes versus the 
scale or quality assurance issues of the project. 

- Weaknesses of  project scheduling:

- Inadequate planning or timing of submission of  
 critical input and feedback;

- Inadequate material delivery lead times, and / or

- Cash flow problems)
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Nonetheless, ten (10) CSI projects were actually completed versus the target of six (6) for the financial year 2017/18. 
Refer to the pictorial presentation below.
 

Municipalities Project description and scope

Bela-Bela Local Municipality 100 VIP Toilets

City of Tshwane Metropolitan 
Municipality

Ramotse Hall
  

Kgetleng Rivier Local 
Municipality

The equipping of 1 Borehole and linkage of it to the Ablution Facility for the LM 
Offices (Koster) were completed; 
•	 Refurbishment of the School’s Ablution 
•	 Facilities Block in  Swartruggens  

Madibeng Local Municipality Drilling and equipping of 2 Borehole in Bapong Village + Erection of 5 Water 
storage tanks throughout the Village                     

Moretele Local Municipality 100 VIP Toilets

Moses Kotane Local 
Municipality 

Bojating - Connection of the secondary storage. Thusang Bana organisation at 
Mabeskraal - was provided with 10 000 litre JoJo tank

Rustenburg Local Municipality Erection of water storage tanks at schools and installation of fire hydrant 150 locks 
(War on Leaks).             

Thabazimbi Local Municipality The pipeline replacement (War on Leaks)         
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Financial Performance Perspective
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Introduction 
 
Magalies Water’s Finance Division is made up of normal
financial management units; including Supply Chain
Management. It is headed by a dedicated Chief Financial
Officer who is supported by the functional Heads of 
Finance and of Supply Chain Management. Collectively, 
the department contributes to the overall Vision of the
organisation by: 

•	 Ensuring the financial viability and sustainability of the 
organisation;

•	 Monitoring and providing appropriate financial 
performance information systems to enable optimal 
business processes while leveraging of opportunities 
for efficiency; 

•	 Putting on the radar treasury-related inherent as well 
as emerging risk management and embedding the 
mitigation control processes in the business processes; 

•	 Ensuring compliance with the relevant legal framework 
to finances of the organisation; and 

•	 Recruiting and  capacitating  employees through 
training and development, to deliver on the set 
financial and overall organisational objectives.

External Auditors: Value Add and 
Support

The Auditor-General of South Africa audited the Magalies 
Water’s Annual Report 2017/2018 for the financial year. 
The audit outcome of the annual financial statements for 
the financial year ending 30 June 2018 have reinforced 
the fact that the Finance Department continued to (in the 
performance of its tasks); focus on its activities such that 
they remain compliant to the legislative and accounting 
frameworks. The annual financial statements for the 
2017/2018 financial year were prepared and presented 
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), the Public Finance Management Act 
(Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA as amended), the Preferential 
Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act No. 5 of 2000 
and its Preferential Procurement Regulations of 2017), 
the Supply Chain Management Framework; the Water 
Services Act (Act No. 108 of 1997 as amended); and other 
related prescripts. The financial statements have been 

prepared on the going concern basis.

Change in the Accounting Framework 

The Accounting Standards Board issued Directive 12 
effective from 1 April 2018. The directive prescribes the 
criteria to be applied by public entities in selecting and 
applying an appropriate reporting framework. Schedule 
3B entities are required to opt for reporting based on 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GRAP) or IFRS if 
they meet the criterion detailed in the directive. Magalies 
Water is currently in the process of evaluating the directive 
to determine the appropriate reporting framework for 
2018/19 financial year.
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Financial Performance 

Profit for the Year

The 2017/18 financial year has been reasonably successful for Magalies Water; with a good revenue growth and increased 
profitability achieved during the year. The net surplus increased 25% compared to the previous financial year; R114.79m 
(2017: R92.17m). The increase is mainly attributable to the management of operating and other expenditure; improved 
revenue; and deferred income as a result of additional assets that were brought into use in the current financial year.

Revenue
Total revenue increased by 14% to R586.4m (2017: R515.4m) mainly as a result of increased sales volume from the Klipdrift 
plant which was upgraded during the financial year; the completed phase of the Pilanesburg Scheme; and demand 
charge implemented on consumers abstracting more than their allowed quota.

Other income increased mainly due to interest charged on outstanding debtors and deferred income earned from the 
assets transferred by mines that were brought in to use during the financial year. 

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales increased by 14% compared to the previous financial year, in line with the increased revenue.

Statement of financial position

Current Assets
Current assets as at 30 June 2018 were R550.27m and 23 % higher than the previous financial year. The main component 
of current assets was the significant increase in trade and other receivables associated with delinquent debtors and 
debtors who delayed payments at year end. As a matter of consequence, R66 million was paid during the first week of 
July 2018. The delays negatively affected the cash and cash equivalent balances. The chart below depicts the percentage 
of the class of debtors in relation to the total debtors’ balance. Bulk Water supply makes up 49% of the total debtors 
balances and 55% are debtors relating to secondary activities.  
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Magalies Water entered into payment agreements with the defaulting bulk water customers which are monitored monthly. 
Plans are also in place to improve debt collection for the coming financial year. 

Current Liabilities
Current liabilities increased by 28% due to a significant increase in trade and other payables. The main component of 
payables is attributable to Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) and DWS-linked (agency contracts) invoices not 
paid before year end. Magalies Water constantly manages its working capital requirements; including managing liquidity 
by balancing the debtors and creditors balances relating to DWS.

Non-Current Assets
Non-current assets increased by 4% mainly due to the Klipdrift plant upgrade that was completed during the year.

Non-Current Liabilities
Magalies Water does not currently utilise gearing to fund its Capital Expansion Implementation Programmes.  The entity 
is currently in a process to assess bankability of CAPEX projects and application for borrowing limits to enable the 
organisation to meet the capital infrastructure requirements.
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Cash Flows 
Cash and cash equivalents reported at 30 June 2018 is R7.6 million (2017: R30.2 million). The entity has sufficient cash 
reserves to continue to pay debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. 

Current liquid assets in Magalies Water’s portfolio as at 30 June 2018 were: (1) Investments R109.9m; (2) Cash and cash 
equivalents R7.65m and (3) R66.0m received subsequent to year end.

Supply Chain Management
 
Magalies Water supply chain management (SCM) unit forms part of the Finance division. 
The SCM function is to ensure that it supports the management in achieving the organisational mandate, strategy and 
goals.

The SCM unit ensures that its processes for the procurement of goods, services and construction works is fair, equitable, 
transparent, competitive and cost effective in line with the Constitution and all relevant legislation. The unit also forms 
part of an integral system of continuous improvement in the implementation of the procurement policies and procedures.  

Magalies Water draws strength from the positive results confirmed by the Auditor General’s report that highlight our 
commitment to fortification of SCM   unit’s support across the entity in compliance with applicable legislation. 
 
The SCM practitioners have the knowledge, skills and attributes required to carry out the strategic objective of the 
organisation efficiently and effectively; actively engage in continuous improvement, innovation and learning, and are 
supported by an ethical and professional leadership, oversight and governance. 

Magalies Water made progress during 2017/18 in forging strategic ‘partnerships’ that empowered and capacitated 
historically disadvantaged individuals and communities to a new trajectory. This indicates an environment that is focused 
on compliance and control and that has moved to higher levels of maturity where measurement, performance, outcomes, 
impact, learning and continuous improvement are prioritised. 
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Procurement Spend: SMME/B-BBEE Progress Report

As at the end of 2017/18, Magalies  Water had achieved 10.18% spend on Small, Medium Micro Enterprises (SMME).
The table and graph below depict the achievement levels. 

Procurement Total Spend: 2017/18
 

MW Total (2017/18) Non_SMME Spend (2017/18 SMME Spend (2017/18)

609,957,888 547,871,630 62,086,257

100.00% 89.82% 10.18%
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Magalies Water’s commitment to the transformation agenda remains crucial to the aim of supporting the 
development of an enabling environment for the mutual business growth, development and enhancement 
of organisational capacity, development and empowerment of SMMEs and to enable, nurture and sustain 
mutually beneficial stakeholders’ relationships.



136 Magalies Water   |   Annual Report 2017/2018

Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee hereby presents its Report for the year ended 30 June 2018.  The committee is an independent 

statutory body appointed by the Board in compliance with the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 0f 1999 as 

amended) (PFMA) as well as the Treasury Regulations. 

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

In addition to the PFMA prescripts referred to above, the roles and responsibilities of the Committee are set out in the 

Treasury Regulation 27.1.  The Committee plays an independent role in Corporate Governance, Combined Assurance, 

Integrated Reporting and management of internal controls.  Members are also accountable to the Board to which they 

report on their evaluation of Financial Statements and effectiveness of internal controls during the financial year, in order 

to ensure credibility of the audit outcomes that are incorporated to the Annual Report 2017/18.  

Furthermore, the roles of the Committee comprise the of following:

• Risk areas of the entity to be covered in the scope of internal audit

• Adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided to users of financial information

• Accounting and Auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and external audit

• Entity compliance with the legal and statutory provisions

The committee hereby reports that it has complied with its responsibilities in accordance to Section 51 of the PFMA 

and the provisions paragraph 27.1 of the Treasury Regulations.  The committee also reports that it has discharged its 

responsibilities and regulated its affairs in accordance to its Audit Committee Charter.  

The committee has assisted the Board in fulfilment of its oversight role through review of financial reporting processes, 

internal controls, audit processes, monitoring compliance with accounting policies, compliance to applicable legislation 

and regulations.
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Composition and Attendance to Meetings

The Committee consists of six independent non-executive members of which three are members of the Board.  

The Audit committee held all the scheduled meetings for the 2017/18 financial year and attendance rate is set out as 

follows:

Member Attendance

TF Zondi (Chairperson)  6/6

N Mufamadi  4/6

MS Lebeko-Ratlhagane 6/6

SM Mamotheti  6/6

S Madikizela 6/6

K Moodley  6/6

In the table below are other Board members who attended by invitation the meetings:

Member Attendance

Adv. MM Petlane  2/2

PN Nkwinika  6/6

DR Sibanda  1/1

MA Hlahla  1/1 

TT Mohapi  1/1

TD Monewe  1/1

FP Vilakazi  1/1

F Saloojee  1/1

Kgosi SV Suping 1/1

In addition, also by invitation the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finance Officer,  the outsourced Internal Audit Head, 

Office of the Auditor-General, Strategy Manager and the Risk Manager attended Audit Committee meetings.  The Board 

also appointed a full time dedicated Chief Audit Executive during the 2017/18 financial year and the incumbent assumed 

his duties from the 1st of July 2018.
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Effectiveness of internal control

The systems of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities 

and working capital are efficiently managed.  In accordance with the PFMA and corporate governance requirements of 

King IV, Internal Audit provided the Committee, management and the Board with assurance that the internal controls are 

appropriate and effective.  This accountability of the committee has been achieved by ensuring that risk management 

processes identified corrective actions and led to the enhancements of controls wherever various reports of Internal Audit, 

the Audit Report and the Management Letter of the Auditor-General could note gaps. During the 2017/18, Management 

and the committee also raised to a higher level the response capacity to mitigate control weaknesses that used to be of 

concern, and are content with the continuous improvements planned for the 2018/19 financial year.  

 
Quality of management quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA

Quarterly performance information per the Shareholders Compact was analysed and the committee was continuously 

satisfied with the content and quality of Magalies Water reports.

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements

The committee:

•	 Reviewed and discussed the draft annual financial statements to be included in the integrated annual report with 

the Auditor General, Management and the Accounting Authority;

•	 Reviewed the report in terms of, from time to time, changes in accounting policies and practices;

•	 Noted adjustments made as a results of the audit process;

•	 Reviewed the entities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; among others.
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The Committee concurs with and accept the Auditor General’s report on the annual financial statements and all other 

governance related internal controls applicable to the performance report for 2017/18.

 
Internal Audit

The internal audit plan was approved during the financial year and.  The Audit committee provided its oversight to the 

internal audit function and approved the internal audit plan and charter.  The Audit committee is satisfied that the Internal 

Audit function is effectively operating and that the function is sufficiently resourced. The internal audit function has been 

open to the idea of subjecting it to independent quality reviews, had the Audit committee deemed it appropriate. 

External Audit

The Committee met with the Auditor General to ensure that there were no unresolved issues and we concur with the 

issues they raised in their report.

Ms TF Zondi

Chairperson of the Audit Committee
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON 
MAGALIES WATER

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion 

1.	 I have audited the financial statements of Magalies Water set out on pages 152 to195, which comprise the statement 

of financial position as at 30 June 2018, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement 

of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2.	 In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Magalies 

Water as at 30 June 2018, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 

South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

Emphasis of matter 

3.	 I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures  

4.	 As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for the 30 June 2017 have been 

restated as a result of errors in the financial statements of the entity, at and for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements 

5.	 The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the requirements of the PFMA, and for such internal 

control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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6.	 In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing Magalies Water’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern 

basis of accounting unless the accounting authority either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has 

no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

7.	 My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

the ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 

are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

8.	 A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure to this 

auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope 

9.	 In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice 

issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance information 

against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report. I performed 

procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

10.	 My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved performance 

planning documents of the entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance 

indicators/ measures included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures 

or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be 

included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters. 
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11.	 I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the criteria 

developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general notice, for the 

following selected objectives presented in the annual performance report of the entity for the year ended 30 June 

2018:

Objectives Pages in the annual 
performance report

To manage customer and stakeholder relations 117 – 127

To provide quality portable water 82 – 88

To provide sustainable water services to customers 82 – 88

12.	 I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly presented and 

whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I performed further 

procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed 

the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

13.	 The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected objectives are as follows:

To provide sustainable water services to customers 

Indicator: Percentage overall project completion within target milestone

14.	 The systems and processes that enable reliable reporting of achievement against the indicator were not adequately 

designed as no annual planned milestones per project exist to allow the entity to measure the annual achievement 

and consequently achieved milestones couldn’t be compared to annual planned milestones to confirm that the 

annual target was achieved.
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15.	 I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 

following objectives: 

•	 To provide quality portable water

•	 To manage customer and stakeholder relations

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation 

Introduction and scope 

16.	 In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material 

findings on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify 

findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance. 

17.	 The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislations are as follows: 

Expenditure management 

18.	 Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R801 000 as disclosed in note 27 to the 

annual financial statements, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1.  The majority 

of the irregular expenditure was caused by non-compliance with the national treasury regulations.

 Consequence management  

19.	 Disciplinary steps were not taken against the officials who had incurred and/or permitted irregular expenditure in the 

prior year, as required by section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA due to no investigations being conducted.
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Other information 

20.	 The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report. The other information does not include the financial statements, the auditor’s report 

and those selected objectives presented in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in 

this auditor’s report. 

21.	 My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and compliance 

with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon.

22.	 In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected objectives presented in the 

annual performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

23.	 I did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. After I receive and read this information, 

and if I conclude that there is a material misstatement, I am required to communicate the matter to those charged 

with governance and request that the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, I may 

have to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is corrected this 

will not be necessary.

 
Internal control deficiencies 

24.	 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance information 

and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form of assurance on it. 

The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the finding on 

performance report and compliance with legislation.
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Leadership 

25.	 Due to instability within the CFO position, it resulted in inadequate consequence management at the entity.

26.	 Due to not having the detailed and adequate technical indicator descriptions it resulted in challenges in the application 

of the processes relating to performance information due to a change in management.

 
Other reports 

27.	 I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an impact 

on the matters reported in the entities financial statements, reported performance information, compliance with 

applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial 

statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.

 

Investigations 

28.	 Several investigations were also conducted, or were in progress, by the internal audit unit at the request of the 

accounting authority arising from allegations of financial misconduct against officials of the entity. The investigations 

were still in progress at year end.

 

Pretoria

15 October 2018
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 1 

1.	 As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on reported performance 

information for selected objectives and on the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

 
Financial statements 

2.	 In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this auditor’s report, I also: 

•	 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

•	 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

entity’s internal control

•	 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority.

•	 conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority’s use of 
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the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 

cast significant doubt on Magalies Water ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the 

financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease continuing as a going concern

•	 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 

fair presentation

Communication with those charged with governance 

3.	 I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my 

audit. 

4.	 I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a 

bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

The Board is required in terms of the Water Services Act No 108 of 1997 and the Public Finance Management Act No1 

of 1991 (as amended) to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the 

annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is the Board’s responsibility to 

ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial 

year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial 

Reporting Standards.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are 

based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 

and estimates.

The Board acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial controls established by the 

entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet 

these responsibilities, the Board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost 

effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, 

effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls 

are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring 

the company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of 

risk management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across 

the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that 

appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 

procedures and constraints.

Boards’ Responsibilities and Approval
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The Board is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal 

control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual 

financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to June 30, 2019 and, in light of this review and 

the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has or had access to adequate resources to continue in 

operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Auditor General is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the entity’s annual financial statements. 

The annual financial statements have been examined by the Auditor’s General  and their report is presented on pages 

140 to 147.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 152 to 195, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 

approved by the Board on August 15, 2018; and were signed on their behalf by:

Approval of financial statements

S Mkhize 
Chief Executive Officer

Adv MM Petlane 
Chairperson of the Board

Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018
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Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2018

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 2,773,980 2,661,728
Intangible assets 4 33,465 36,540

2,807,445 2,698,268

Current Assets
Inventories 7 26,096 22,380
Trade and other receivables 8 406,585 279,281
Other financial assets 5 109,943 115,191
Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,649 30,174

550,273 447,026

Total Assets 3,357,718 3,145,294

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Retained income 1,450,687 1,335,893

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred income 10 566,841 580,751

Capital contributions 11 89,843 91,407
Government grant 12 864,284 836,006

1,520,968 1,508,164

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 355,526 274,240
Operating lease liability 13 6 24
Deferred income 10 13,909 13,909
Capital contributions 11 1,564 1,564
Government grant 12 15,058 11,500

386,063 301,237

Total Liabilities 1,907,031 1,809,401

Total Equity and Liabilities 3,357,718 3,145,294

2018 Restated 2017
Note(s) R '000 R '000
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Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 2,773,980 2,661,728
Intangible assets 4 33,465 36,540

2,807,445 2,698,268

Current Assets
Inventories 7 26,096 22,380
Trade and other receivables 8 406,585 279,281
Other financial assets 5 109,943 115,191
Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,649 30,174

550,273 447,026

Total Assets 3,357,718 3,145,294

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Retained income 1,450,687 1,335,893

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred income 10 566,841 580,751

Capital contributions 11 89,843 91,407
Government grant 12 864,284 836,006

1,520,968 1,508,164

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 355,526 274,240
Operating lease liability 13 6 24
Deferred income 10 13,909 13,909
Capital contributions 11 1,564 1,564
Government grant 12 15,058 11,500

386,063 301,237

Total Liabilities 1,907,031 1,809,401

Total Equity and Liabilities 3,357,718 3,145,294

Note(s)
2018
R '000

Restated 2017
R '000

Revenue 15 586,409 515,398
Cost of sales 16 (370,232) (325,968)

Gross profit 216,177 189,430
Other operating income 17 43,675 36,266
Other operating expenses (166,875) (151,728)

Operating profit 18 92,977 73,968
Investment income 19 21,817 18,363
Finance costs 20 - (157)

Profit for the year 114,794 92,174
Total comprehensive income for the year 114,794 92,174
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Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Changes in Equity

                                                                                                                      R '000 

Balance at July 1, 2016 1,243,719   1,243,719

Total comprehensive income for the year 95,270  95,270

Adjustments
Prior period adjustments (3,096)          (3,096)

Balance at July 1, 2017 (Restated) 1,335,893 1,335,893
Profit for the year 114,794 114,794
Total comprehensive income for the year 114,794 114,794
Balance at June 30, 2018

Total equity

 
R '000

Retained 
income
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     2018 Restated 2017
    Note(s) R '000 R '000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 21 106,585       567,584
Finance Income    21,817       18,363
Finance costs     -       (157)

Net cash from operating activities  128,402       585,790

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (185,365)       (783,778) 
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 3 357       421
Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (1,439)  (178) 
Movement in other financial assets   5,248 (4,971)

Net cash from investing activities  (181,199) (788,506)

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in capital contributions   (1,564)  (913) 
Movement in deferred government grant  31,836 197,391

Net cash from financing activities  30,272 196,478

Total cash movement for the year  (22,525) (6,238)
Cash at the beginning of the year  30,174 36,412

Total cash at end of the year  9 7,649        30,174

Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Statement of Cash Flows

Total equity

 
R '000
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Accounting Policies

Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

Corporate information

Magalies Water is a Water Board established in terms of section 28 of the Water Services Act, (Act No 108 of 1997) and

Public Entity as per Schedule 3B of the Public Finance Management Act (act No.1 of 1999), as amended.

The annual financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution 

of the directors on 15 August 2018 .

1. Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below. These 

accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the previous period.

1.1   Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors 

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates 

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations, 

that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements, are outlined as follows:

1.2   Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use or for rental to others and 

which are expected to be used for more than one year.
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Accounting Policies

Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the item will flow to the company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly 

attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying 

assets and adjustments in respect of hedge accounting, where appropriate.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant and 

equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 

company and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in 

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is 

charged to write off the asset's carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a 

method that best reflects the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed by the company. Leased assets 

are depreciated in a consistent manner over the shorter of their expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation is 

not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset 

ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item Depreciation method Average useful life

Buildings Straight line 40 - 45 years

Pipelines & reservoirs Straight line 45 - 65 years

Plant and machinery Straight line 18 - 25 years

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 6 - 10 years

Motor vehicles Straight line 4 - 10 years
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1.2   Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Office equipment Straight line 3 - 10 years

IT equipment Straight line 3 - 10 years

Laboratory equipment Straight line 5 - 10 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If 

the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting 

estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the 

item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 

asset.

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. 

When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated 

recoverable amount and/or value in use, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the 

carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant 

and equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 

item, is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

1.3   Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the expected economic benefits that are attributable to the 

asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Accounting Policies

Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018
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Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring into use the specific 

software. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs and acquisition of licences are recognised as 

an expense when they are incurred.

Servitudes are rights granted to Magalies Water for an indefinite period of time. The life of the servitude will remain in 

force as long as the relevant infrastructure is still in use. A servitude will only become impaired if the infrastructure to 

which the servitude is linked is derecognised.

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible 

assets unless such lives are indefinite.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Item                                                                                       Useful life 
Computer software                                                                      3 - 5 years 

Servitudes                                                                     Indefinite

1.4   Impairment of assets

The entity assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If 

any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests intangible assets with an indefinite 

useful life. The impairment test is performed during the annual period and at the same time every period.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its 

recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement

Accounting Policies

Magalies Water
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2018
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Accounting Policies

Magalies Water
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1.5   Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost, determined on the weighted average cost basis, and net realisable 

value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing 

the inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories held by the entity comprise of water, chemicals, 

maintenance spares and consumables.

1.6   Financial instruments

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:

• Loans and receivables

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place 

at initial recognition. The entity classifies the financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition 

as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual 

arrangement. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis.

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instruments.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not 

determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.
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Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 

impairment losses.

The entity classifies financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been 

transferred and the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the entity assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to 

determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.

For amounts due to the entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 

bankruptcy and default on payments are all considered indicators of impairment.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit 

or loss within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance 

account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables and loans receivables

Trade and other receivables and loans receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less impairment losses. A provision for impairment 

of trade receivables is recognised when there is objective evidence that the entity might not be able to recover the 

amount due. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 

reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days overdue) are considered indicators that the 

trade receivable might be impaired.
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1.6   Financial instruments (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is 

recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against 

the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 

operating expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and bank balances and are initially measured at fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of 

allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.

Accounting Policies
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1.7   Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered) are recognised 

in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 

their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of performance bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 

obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plan

The entity contributes towards Magalies Water Retirement Fund and the fund is registered and controlled in terms of the 

Pensions Fund Act 24 of 1956. The entity is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

1.8   Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. All other 

leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 

between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 

asset or liability.

Accounting Policies
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1.9    Revenue

The entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the entity. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 

receivable net of discounts and value added taxation (VAT). Revenue from sale of goods and services is recognised 

as follows:

• Revenue from sale of water is recognised when significant risks and rewards are passed to the customer.

• Revenue from services is recognised in the period in which the services are rendered.

• Management fees are recognised in the period in which the services are rendered in accordance with 

the substance of the relevant agreements.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

1.10  Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes the cost of raw water, chemicals, electricity and all other direct operating costs associated 

with the production of water.

1.11  Government grant

Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they will 

be received and that the entity will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. The grant is related to the 

construction of an asset and has been presented in the statement of financial position by setting up the grant as 

deferred income. The grant will be recognised as revenue on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related 

asset when it is brought into use.
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1.12  Transfer of assets from customers

Transferred assets from customers are measured on initial recognition at fair value. The corresponding 

amount is recognised as deferred income. Revenue is recognised on a systematic basis over the useful 

life of the assets.

1.13  Capital Contributions

The contributions are recognised as revenue on a systematic basis over the useful life of the assets when the 

assets are brought into use.

1.14  Related Parties

Magalies Water is a state controlled entity and has related party relationships with all other entities within the 

sphere of government. Unless otherwise disclosed, all transactions with related parties are on arm's length basis 

at market related prices.

1.15  Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose events will only be confirmed 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 

entity.

Contingent assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 24.
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1.16  Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure

For the purposes of determining whether irregular expenditure has taken place, there must have been a 

transgression of a provision contained in any applicable legislation which shall include:

• PFMA

• Treasury Regulations and National Treasury Instructions

• SCM Policy

All instances of irregular expenditure are investigated and disciplinary action is taken against the employees 

who have transgressed the regulations.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the year that the 

expenditure is incurred. When the expenditure is recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as income in the 

income statement.

1.17  Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position when 

there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the entity intends either to settle on a net 

basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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      2018 2017
      R '000 R '000

2. New Standards and Interpretations

2.1   Standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

The entity has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and 
are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation:  Effective date: Expected impact:
      Years beginning on or 
      after 

 • Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021 Unlikely there will be  
       a material impact

• IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019  Unlikely there will be 
a material impact

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 1, 2018 Impact is currently 
being assessed

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 1, 2018 Impact is currently 
being assessed

• Amendments to IFRS 15: Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue 
 from Contracts with Customers  January 1, 2018 Impact is currently  

     being assessed

Accounting Policies
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3. Property, plant and equipment

2018 2017

Cost or revaluation Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost or 
revaluation

Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying value

Land 4,564 - 4,564 4,564 - 4,564

Buildings 250,122 (68,372) 181,750 201,241 (63,483) 137,758

Plant and machinery 476,416 (134,791) 341,625 434,044 (114,329) 319,715

Furniture and fixtures 9,389 (5,566) 3,823 8,549 (4,539) 4,010

Motor vehicles 28,122 (19,600) 8,522 22,761 (18,924) 3,837

IT equipment 24,154 (13,055) 11,099 19,671 (10,470) 9,201

Pipelines and reservoirs 1,977,734 (393,386) 1,584,348 1,962,491 (350,444) 1,612,047

Capital work in progress 638,249 - 638,249 570,596 - 570,596

Total 3,408,750 (634,770) 2,773,980 3,223,917 (562,189) 2,661,728
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Reconciliation of 
property, plant and 
equipment - 2018

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment 
loss

Total

Land 4,564 - - - - - 4,564

Buildings 137,758 947 - 47,934 (4,888) (1) 181,750

Plant and machinery 319,715 9,244 - 33,606 (20,926) (14) 341,625

Furniture and fixtures 4,010 840 - - (1,027) - 3,823

Motor vehicles 3,837 5,893 (157) - (1,051) - 8,522

IT equipment 9,201 3,811 - 195 (2,107) - 11,099

Pipelines and Reservoirs 1,612,047 - - 15,242 (42,941) - 1,584,348

Capital Work In Progress 570,596 164,630 - (96,977) - - 638,249

2,661,728 185,365 (157) - (72,940) (15) 2,773,980

Reconciliation of 
property, plant and 
equipment - 2017

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation Impairment 
loss

Total

Land 4,564 - - - - - 4,564

Buildings 86,390 715 - 54,430 (3,774) (3) 137,758

Plant and machinery 137,532 3,894 (110) 195,386 (16,945) (42) 319,715

Furniture and fixtures 2,498 1,796 - 401 (679) (6) 4,010

Motor vehicles 4,669 - (47) - (783) (2) 3,837

IT equipment 7,757 2,906 - - (1,426) (36) 9,201

Pipelines and Reservoirs 573,257 - - 1,071,442 (32,652) - 1,612,047

Capital Work In Progress 1,117,788 774,467 - (1,321,659) - - 570,596

1,934,455 783,778 (157) - (56,259) (89) 2,661,728

3. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes in estimates Adjusted
depreciation depreciation

Buildings 3 1

Plant and Machinery 921 161

Vehicles 5 1

Furniture and fixtures 10 2

IT equipment 11 3

950 168

The assets classes listed above included assets that were nearing the end of its useful life, but still in use. The 
average useful lives of these assets was assessed at year-end. The impact of the change in accounting estimate 
have been reflected above.

4. Intangible assets

    

2018 2017

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated 
amortisation

Carrying 
value

Computer software 50,982 (18,706) 32,276 49,964 (14,193) 35,771

Intangible assets 1 - - - - - -

Servitudes 1,189 - 1,189 769 - 769

Total 52,171 (18,706) 33,465 50,733 (14,193) 36,540
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Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018 Opening Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software
balance

35,771 1,019 (4,514) 32,276
Servitudes 769 420 - 1,189

36,540 1,439 (4,514) 33,465

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Opening 
balance

Additions Amortisation Impairment loss Total

Computer software 40,108 178 (4,510) (5) 35,771

Servitudes 769 - - - 769

40,877 178 (4,510) (5) 36,540

5. Other financial assets

Loans and receivables - current portion
Loans and receivables consist of short term deposits held with various financial institutions
The carrying amount approximates the fair value of the financial assets.

Current assets
At amortised cost - Loans and receivables

6. Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

4. Intangible assets

109,943 115,191

109, 943 115,191
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6. Financial assets by category

2018 Loans and 
receivables

Total

Short term investments 109,943 109,943

Cash and cash equivalents 7,649 7,649

Trade and other receivables 406,585 406,585

524,177 524,177

2017 Loans and 
receivables

Total

Short term investments 115,191 115,191

Cash and cash equivalents 30,174 30,174

Trade and other receivables 279,281 279,281

424,646 424,646

7. Inventories 
Water inventory 2,471 2,083

Spares, consumables etc 19,483 17,141

Chemicals 4,142 3,188

26,096 22,412

- (32)

26,096 22,380

7.1   Inventory Schedule
Water inventory 2,471 2,083

Chemicals 4,142 3,188

Spares, consumables etc 19,483 17,141

26,096 22,412
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7.1   Inventory Schedule
Water inventory 2,471 2,083

Chemicals 4,142 3,188

Spares, consumables etc 19,483 17,141

26,096 22,412

8. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 412,842 267,491

Impairment of receivables (38,869) (15,683) 

Prepayments 831    1,224

Deposits 2,043 1,994

Sundry debtors 29,738 24,255

406,585 279,281

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are carried at amortised cost and the 
carrying amount approximates the fair value.Trade debtors are granted credit terms of 30 days from the date 
of invoice to settle outstanding debts.
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8. Trade and other receivables (continued)
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are 30 days and 60 days past due are not considered to be impaired. At June 30, 2018, 
R89 764 455.43  (2017: R96 388 473) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not considered impaired are as follows:

30 days 49,924 93,309
60 days 39,841 3,079

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of June 30, 2018, trade and other receivables were assessed for impairment and and the allowance for impairment has 
been provided for.

The amount of the provision is R38 868 855.47 as of June 30, 2018 (2017: R 15 683 203).

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

3 to 6 months 98,850 15,104
Over 6 months 123,980 73,286

Reconciliation of impairment loss of trade and other receivables

Opening balance 15,683 11,558
Impairment loss 23,186 4,125

38,869 15,683

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 10 9
Bank balances 7,639 30,165

7,649 30,174
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10.   Deferred income

Deferred income consist of assets transferred by the mines to Magalies Water. These assets consist of the following: 

Pipelines and reservoir constructed by Platmin Mine in line with the off take agreement that was signed in 2008 - 

R123.4M
Pipelines and reservoir from Platmin, Barrick, and Maseve & Wesizwe Mines transferred in the 2016/2017 financial 
year to the value of R457.3M

Non-current liabilities 566,841 580,751

Current liabilities 13,909 13,909
580,750 594,660

Transferred assets from customers are measured on initial recognition at fair value. The corresponding 
amount is recognised as deferred income. Revenue is recognised on a systematic basis over the useful 
life of the assets.

11.   Capital contributions
Capital contributions consist primarily of contributions received from the Department of Public Works (R23.4m), Maseve
Investments (R35.2m) and Bakubung Minerals (R35.2m). These contributions benefit specific projects.

The contributions are recognised as revenue when the assets are brought into use over the useful life of the assets.
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11.   Capital contributions (continued)

Capital contributions
Non-current portion 89,843 91,407

Current Portion 1,564 1,564

91,407 92,971

12.   Government grant

Government grant consists primarily of the grant received from the Department of Water and Sanitation for the 
construction of the Pilanesberg Scheme and Klipdrift Upgrade. The grant will be recognised as revenue when 
the asset is brought into use over the useful life of the asset. Phase 1 of the Pilanesberg Scheme and the Klipdrift 
Contract 1 and 2 have been completed, and a portion of the grant is recognised as revenue over the useful life of 
the asset.

Department of Water & Sanitation
Non-current portion 864,284 836,006

Current portion 15,058 11,500

879,342 847,506

13.   Operating lease
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for office equipment. Leases are negotiated 
for an average term of three years. There are no escalation clauses in the operating lease agreements. The rental 
periods are in accordance with the contracts per service provider.

Lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease 
term.

Lease smoothing
Operating lease accrual 6 24

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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14.   Trade and other payables

Trade payables and accruals 266,850 174,635

Amounts received in advance 15,606 17,168

Retentions 48,116 50,725

Accrual for bonuses 12,408 21,412

Deposits received 2,143 2,021

Accrual for leave pay 9,580 8,238

Unknown deposits 823 41

355,526 274,240

Fair value of trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost and the carrying amount approximates fair value. Trade 

payables are normally settled within 30 days from the date of receipt of invoice. Unknown deposit balance include 

an amount of R716 496.00 relating to water deposit not yet allocated to customer accounts.

15.   Revenue

Sale of Water         586,409  515,398

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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16.   Cost of sales

Cost of sales is made up as follows:
Raw water purchases 80,636 77,425

Chemicals 26,557 28,540

Direct employee costs 74,919 59,631

Electricity 92,775 86,644

Depreciation 63,390 49,617

Other production overheads 24,016 24,111

Potable Water Costs (CoT Augmented) 7,939 -

370,232 325,968

370,232 325,968

17.   Other operating income

Profit on sale of assets 200 264

Management fees 8,098 9,904

Tender fees 159 505

Deferred income recognised 28,991 22,227

Lab analysis 1,836 1,108

Cost recovery income 1,853 1,751

Rental Income 243 290

Other Income 2,295 217

43,675 36,266

Other income comprises of re-connection and connection fees paid by customers, including significant deposit from 
City of Tshwane.
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18.   Operating Profit
Operating profit for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Other income
Deferred income recognised 28,991 22,227

Management fees 8,098 9,904

37,089 32,131

Operating lease charges
Equipment
• Contractual amounts 1,426 1,732

Consulting fees 11,483 10,551

Impairment on property, plant and equipment 15 93

Amortisation on intangible assets 4,513 4,509

Inventory recognised as an expense - 1,510

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 72,940 56,283

Employee costs 142,813 135,485

19.   Finance Income

Interest earned on:
Investments 8,880 9,018

Banks 1,302 1,373

Interest charged on trade and other receivables 11,635 7,972

21,817 18,363
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20.   Finance costs

Trade and other payables -                                    157

Finance cost relate to interest charged by SARS for delayed payment.  This interest was subsequently waived in August
2017.

21.   Cash generated from operations
Profit before taxation

114,794 92,174

Adjustments for:
Depreciation, amortisation 77,453 60,770

Profit/loss on sale of assets (200) (264)

Interest received - investment (21,817) (18,363)

Finance costs - 157

Impairment of assets 15 93

Operating lease accrual (18) (29)

Changes in working capital:
Inventories (3,716) 773

Trade and other receivables (127,302) (48,193)

Trade and other payables 81,286 15,842

Deferred income (13,910) 464,624

106,585 567,584
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22.   Emoluments
Board

2018

Adv. M.M. Petlane (Chairperson)

Board fees

83

Committee 
fees

33

Other fees*

 253

Expenses^

527

Total

896

Ms P.N.Nkwinika (Deputy Chairperson) 35  134  154 408 731

Ms M. Hlahla** 54 17 34 168 273

Mr D.R.Sibanda 25 69 55 213 362

Ms T.F.Zondi 27 53 60 184 324

Ms T.D. Monewe 40 93 70 205 408

Mr T.T. Mohapi 41 59 59 284 443

Ms F. Saloojee 35 68 57 249 409

Mr F.P. Vilakazi 45 71 76 169 361

Ms M.M. Mufamadi 29 18 16 129 192

Mr S.V. Suping 39 42 48 258 387

Ms M.S. Ratlhagane 40 61 87 227 415

493 718 969 3,021 5,201

* Other fees consists of all other meetings attended by Board Members

^ Expenses comprise of stipend, travel & accommodation and general refunds

** Ms Hlahla resigned on 27 March 2018 and Mr Maepa on 27 August 2016
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2017

Board fees Committee Other Fees* Expenses^ Total

fees

Adv M.M. Petlane (Chairperson) 72 44 237 266 619

Ms P.N. Nkwinika (Deputy Chairperson) 45 178 116 304 643

Ms M. Hlahla 37 77 8 137 259

Mr D.R. Sibanda 31 94 22 146 293

Ms T.F. Zondi 40 99 41 141 321

Ms T.D. Monewe 37 76 67 137 317

Mr T.T. Mohapi 43 107 54 204 408

Ms F. Saloojee 33 92 - 142 267

Mr F.P. Vilakazi 33 95 88 148 364

Ms M.M. Mufamadi 30 53 - 127 210

Kgosi S.V. Suping 40 65 59 167 331

Ms M.S. Ratlhagane 40 127 52 178 397

Mr A.N. Maepa 6 10 - 31 47

487 1,117 744 2,128 4,476

* Other fees consists of all other meetings attended by Board Members

^ Expenses comprise of stipend, travel & accommodation and general refunds
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* Mr S Mkhize was appointed Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 January 2018

** Ms P Ratlabala was appointed GM Corporate Services with effect from 15 January 2018

*** Mr M Mehlo was appointed Chief Operating Officer with effect from 01 May 2018

**** Mr L Mushayanyama was appointed GM Stakeholder and Customer Services with effect from 10 January 2018

*****Mr P Moseki was appointed Chief Financial Officer with effect from 21 May 2018
****** Ms K Kgatuke resigned in July 2017

^ Expenses comprise of cellphone allowances, travel & accommodation and refunds

^^ Other expenses comprise leave pay out and company contributions

Executive Management
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2017

Salaries Acting Expenses^ Performance Other Total

allowance bonus expenses

Mr S Mkhize- Acting Chief 1,263 107 293 - 291 1,954

Executive

Mr CL Mohalaba - GM 865 32 208 180 394 1,679

Corporate Services

Ms R Raphela - GM Finance - - - 213 2 215

Ms L Morake - GM Water 850 62 185 204 215 1,516

Services

Mr R Le Roux - GM - - - 41 261 302

Engineering Services

Mr PS Lebogo - Acting GM 833 85 209 220 196 1,543

Stakeholder

Mr M Mehlo - Acting Chief 1,010 106 186 59 212 1,573

Operating Officer

Ms T Radebe - GM PMU 1,013 - 167 - 185 1,365

Ms K Kgatuke- GM 
Finance

1,200 - 371 - 46 1,617

7,034 392 1,619 917 1,802 11,764
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22.   Emoluments (continued)
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23.   Commitments
Capital Commitments

Already contracted but not provided for
Property, plant and equipment 504,184 354,415

The committed capital expenditure relates to infrastructure upgrades and will be financed through existing cash resources 
and capital contributions.

Operating lease commitments

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year  584 170
- in second to fifth year inclusive 588 94

  1,172                      264

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity  for office equipment and premises. Leases are negotiated 
for an average term of three years. There are no escalation clauses  in the current operating leage agreements. The rental 
periods are in accordance with the contracts per service provider. No contingent rent is payable.
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24.   Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent Liabilities

1. Guarantees of R512 378.00 were issued by Standard Bank in respect of payments to Eskom.

2. Ya –Rena Civils (Pty) Ltd was contracted to build a 20-mega litre reservoir for the Pilanesberg Scheme. The contractor 

failed to complete the work on time and penalties were imposed by Magalies Water. The contractor is suing for payment 

of the last invoice submitted; despite penalties imposed for the delays being higher than the invoice submitted. Magalies 

Water is defending the claim. The Court set the matter for hearing on 20 April 2018 at Mafikeng High Court. However, 

the matter had to be postponed on the set date because of political riots in Mafikeng that impacted all public services. 

The matter was subsequently held in chambers on the 15 June 2018; where both parties presented oral submissions to 

the Court and judgment was reserved. The amount claimed by the plaintiff is R 3 275 891.29.

3. Legal proceedings have been instituted against Magalies Water by ex-employees. The entity’s legal advisors have 

advised that Magalies Water has reasonable defence and the probability of loss is minimal. The amount claimed by the 

plaintiffs is R840 000.

4. Magalies Water was served with an interdict to cease and stop the implementation of tender RFB/MW/97/2016-7, 

Moretele South Water Pipeline by Umso Construction (Pty) Ltd and Crown Bay Construction (PTY) Ltd JV. The interdiction 

of the tender implementation is to allow Umso JV to commence review application of the decision to award the said 

tender to Murray and Dickson Construction (Pty) Ltd. This is based on the opinion that their bid was unfairly evaluated 

and that they ought to have been the one appointed as, they had the lowest bid price.

Arguments on the matter were heard by the court on 16 March 2018. Judgment was delivered on 12 April 2018; and 

applicant’s review was dismissed with costs.
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However, on 07 May 2018 the applicant filed a notice of application for leave to appeal the judgment and the costs 

order. The application will be heard on 03 August.

Contingent asset

Magalies Water has servitudes that are not yet registered in the entity's name. The process to negotiate the value 

of the land with the owners is in progress. As at 30 June 2018, this process has not yet been finalised. As a result, 

Magalies Water is uncertain as to the amount of these servitutes. These servitudes have not been accounted for in the 

Annual Financial Statements.

25.   Related parties
`

Relationships
Ultimate holding company National Government
Shareholder Minister of Water and Sanitation

The entity has elected to adopt the provisions of IAS 24 that provides the entity an exemption from disclosure 
requirements for related party transactions and outstanding balances with other government related entities.
Other government related entities includes municipalities; our core customers.

The Board and Executive Management are considered as key management and there were no related party 
transactions between the entity and key management during the year under review.
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Related party balances

Amounts included in trade payables
Department of Water & Sanitation 155,411 43,595

Amounts included in trade receivables
Rand Water 60,587 17,673
Department of Water & Sanitation 91,602 92,719

Amounts included in government grant
Department of Water & Sanitation 879,342 853,342

Amounts included in capital contributions
Department of Public Works 23,484 23,484

Amounts included in cost of sales
Department of Water & Sanitation 81,024 74,580

Amounts included in revenue
Rand Water 151,296 165,762

Compensation to the Board and Executive Management
Short-term employee benefits 19,869 13,617

26.   Post retirement benefits
 
Defined contribution plan

Magalies Water contributes towards Magalies Water Retirement Fund. This fund is registered and controlled in terms of 
the Pensions Fund Act 24 of 1956.

Employees make a 7.5% contribution and the employer contributes 10%. The entity is under no obligation to 
cover any unfunded benefits.

The total contribution to the Fund         19,056               14,243
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27.   Irregular Expenditure

Irregular expenditure
Opening balance - 01 July 4,616 145
Irregular expenditure related to capital expenditure - 41,156
Irregular expenditure related to procurement policy 263 466
Irregular expenditure identified during audit 538 4,616

4,879 46,383
Expenditure condoned during the year - (41,767)
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable 4,879 4,616

5,417 4,616

Details of the balance are as follows:

a) Non-compliance with supply chain policy: R 263 112.38

All incidences relate to expenditure which arose as a result of non-compliance with Magalies W ater supply chain management 
policy. Payments were made to a service provider without purchase order or contract and in some instances after expiry of 
a contract.

b) Non-compliance with Preferential Procurement Regulations

The non compliance relates to procurement done on behalf of the Department of Water and Sanitation, where Magalies 
Water is the implementing agent. All cost incurred are recovered from the department and the irregular expenditure will be 
reported in DWS financial statements. The total payments made in the current financial year relating to contracts concluded 
on behalf of the department amount to R10.9 million.

Investigation will be done in accordance with National Treasury guideline and action will be taken against the employees 
who transgressed the regulations.

28.   Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance - 01 July 4 4
Expenditure condoned during the year (4) -

   - 4
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29.   Risk management
Capital risk management

Magalies Water's objective for managing capital is to enhance shareholder value and generate sufficient surplus to 
meet the required capital expenditure programmes, thus sustaining future development of the entity and its ability 
to continue as a going concern. This objective has remained consistent with prior years.

The entity's retained income at 30 June 2018 is R1,45 billion (2017: R1,36 billion).

There were no changes to what the entity manages as capital and the strategy for capital maintenance from 
the previous year.

Financial risk management

The principal financial risks to which Magalies Water is exposed as a result of its financial instruments are: 
liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk (interest rate risk).

The entity’s overall risk management strategy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the entity's’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by 
the entity's investment advisors under policies approved by the Board. The investment policy provides guide 
for overall risk management, as well as investment of excess liquidity.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulties in meeting the obligations associated with its 
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Magalies Water's approach to 
managing liquidity risk is to ensure that the entity will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 
they fall due.

Magalies Water monitors its risk to shortage of funds using projected cash flows from operations and has 
provision for cash buffer investment. The entity also manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future 
commitments.

Cash flow forecasts are prepared.
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The table below reflects Magalies Water's maximum exposure to liquidity risk, which equals the carrying value 
of trade and other payables at reporting date:

Trade and other payables
Current 345,370                         274,240

Interest rate risk

As the entity has no interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates. Magalies Water is exposed to interest rate as a result of 
investments held with various financial institutions. The entity has variable interest rate facilities which are reset 
on changes in prime interest rate, and therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.

A sensitivity analysis to a change in interest rate has been performed based on the exposure to interest rates 
on investments at reporting date. A 1% increase or decrease has been used and represent management's 
assessment of the reasonable possible change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis has been performed on 
the same basis as the previous year.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the entity to interest rate changes by 1%.

1% decrease

Decrease in financial assets (1,106) (1,686)

Decrease in comprehensive income (1,106) (1,686)

(2,212) (3,372)

1% increase
Increase in financial assets 1,105 2,536

Increase in comprehensive income 1,105 2,536

2,210 5,072
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29.   Risk management (continued) 

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity only 
deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Magalies Water minimises loss by default of customers through implementation of policies and procedures relating to debt 
collection. All known risks are disclosed to the Board. Interest is charged at prime rate on debt over 30 days from the date 
of invoice.

The Board does not expect any of the counterparties to fail to meet their obligations, hence no investment has 
been impaired during the current and prior year.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instruments
Loans and receivables 109,943 115,191

Trade and other receivables 406,585 279,281

Cash and cash equivalents 7,649 30,174

524,177 424,646
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30.   Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going 
concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of 
assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of 
business.

31.   Events after the reporting period
No subsequent events were identified by management.

32.   Correction of prior period error

Capital projects completed in the prior year were incorrectly classified as work in progress. The depreciation and 
a portion of deferred income relating to the assets was not recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. The 
error has been corrected retrospectively by restating the prior year figures as shown in the above table.
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Note(s)
2018
R '000

Restated 2017
R '000

Revenue
Sale of Water 586,409 515,398

Cost of sales 16 (370,232) (325,969)
Gross profit 216,177 189,429

Other income

Management fees 8,098 9,904

Sundry income 2,697 1,012

Deferred income 28,991 22,227

Lab analysis 1,836 1,108

Cost recovery income 1,853 1,751

Profit on sale of asset 200 264

Finance Income 19 21,817 18,363

65,492 54,629

Expenses (Refer to page 31) (166,875) (151,728)
Operating profit 18 114,794 92,330
Finance costs 20 - (157)

Profit for the year 114,794 92,173
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Note(s)
2018

R '000
2017

R '000

Operating expenses
Advertising (415) (564)
Auditors remuneration - external auditors (2,538) (2,272)
Bad debts (23,186) (4,124)
Bank charges (134) (114)
Computer expenses (80) (217)
Consulting and professional fees (11,483) (10,551)
Consumables (2,449) (2,267)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments (14,078) (11,267)
Employee costs (67,894) (75,854)
Catering (341) (335)
Licence fees (2,617) (3,191)
Admin overheads (3,636) (1,969)
Membership fees (160) (414)
Flowers (15) -
Promotion and Publication (3,585) (2,350)
Hiring charges (92) (70)
Insurance (2,393) (2,142)
Lease rentals on operating lease (1,426) (1,732)
Legal expenses (1,831) (1,881)
Electricity (499) (535)
Recruitment costs (768) (473)
Corporate social responsibility (2,390) (7,978)
Other operating expenses (4,469) (3,216)
Security (5,769) (4,777)
Telephone and fax (3,397) (3,176)
Training and conferences (5,675) (7,041)
Travel and accommodation (5,555) (3,218)

(166,875) (151,728)
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